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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Post Box: 20357, House No. 173/44

Bhimsenmarg, Bishalnagar, Kathmandu, Nepal

SUJAN KAFLE LR ASSOCIATES Tel: 01-4440283, 4442603, Fax: 4422686
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Email: support@skaca.com.np

INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SANIMA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SANIMA INSURANCE COMPANY
LTD (Insurer) which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as on Ashad 32, 2075
(Corresponding to July 16, 2018), Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Cash Flow and Statement of Changes in Equity of the
Company for the year then ended, and summary of significant accounting policies other
explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements that are free from the material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies and, making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our professional
judgment, including the assessment of risk of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we considered
internal controls relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by management as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Report on Company Act, 2063, Insurance Act, 2049 and on other regulatory requirement

We report that:

a) We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

b)  Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to explanation given to us
from our examination of books of account of the company we have not come across any

First Annual Report : 11



Aiferd SRR oA Uil fot.
Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Post Box: 20357, House No. 173/44

Bhimsenmarg, Bishalnagar, Kathmandu, Nepal
% SUJAN KAFLE LR ASSOCIATES Tel: 01-4440283, 4442603, Fax: 4422686
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cases where the Board of Directors or any employee of the Company have acted contrary
to the provision of law or committed any misappropriation or caused any loss or damage
to the Company.

¢) The Insurance Fund, compulsory reserves fund and other funds of similar nature are
maintained as required by Directives of the BeemaSamiti.

d) To the best of our knowledge, the Insurer is not involved in any insurance business other
than licensed by Beema Samiti.

e) We did not come across any information regarding violation of interest of insured by the
Insurer.

f)  We didnot come across any case of non-compliance with Directives issued by Beema
Samiti.

g) We did not come across any insurance policies issued by the Insurer are in contrary to the
licensed by regulator.

h)  Financial and other relevant information has been given to the shareholders

i)  The insurer is capable to bear all of its accepted longterm liabilities in proportion of
company’s assets.

i) Internal Control System of Insurer seems to be effective.

Auditor’s Opinion

In our opinion, Financial Statements give true and fair view of the financial position of Sanima
Insurance Company Limited as at 32 Ashad 2075 ( 16 July, 2018) and its financial performance
and its cash flow for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards.

CA. Sgjan Kumar Kafle
Managing Partner

Date: 2075.09.02
Place: Kathmandu
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.
Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Statement of Financial Position

as at 32 Ashadh 2075

FY 2074-75| FY 2073-74| FY 2072-73

Note Rs. Rs. Rs.
Assets
Intangible assets 32 - - -
Property & Equipment 31 8,554,176 22,917 5,185
Financial assets
Cash and short-term deposits 19 701,410,461 108,334 593,678
Financial assets at amortized cost 16 - - -
Financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income 15 - - -
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 14 - - -
Other Financial Assets 17 6,966,062 839,367 89,367
Reinsurance Asset 40 140,884 - -
Insurance receivables 20 - - -
Current tax assets 26 10,681,768 46,178 42,623
Other Assets 18 8,672,343 - -
Deferred Tax Assets 27 55,766 - -
Total Assets 736,481,460 1,016,795 730,852
Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities 30 251,428 - -
Insurance Payables 22 111,865 - -
Trade and other payables 21 134,395 906,510 5,100
Other Financial Liabilities 28 1,915,911 708,500 8,500
Other Liabilities 29 3,270,210 260,700 206,700
Current tax Liabilities 26 9,613,966 - -
Deferred Tax Liabilities 27 196,936 - -
Total Liabilities 15,494,711 1,875,710 220,300
Equity
Share capital 23 700,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Share premium 25 - - -
Other capital reserves 24 12,683,005 - -
Other Reserves 24 - - -
Retained Earnings 24 8,303,744 | (1,858,915) (489,447)
Total Equity 720,986,749 (858,915) 510,553
Total Liabilities and Equity 736,481,460 1,016,795 730,852

The notes to the financial statements as set out on schedules 01 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Subodh Lal Shrestha
Deputy General Manager

Ganesh Kadal
Chief Finance Officer

Khem Raj Lamichhane

Director

Dr. Manik Lal Shrestha
Alternate Director

Dr. Jugal Bhurtel
Chairman

CA Sujan Kumar Kafle
Sujan Kafle LR Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.
Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Statement of Profit or Loss
Year ended 32 Ashad 2075

FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74
Note
Rs. Rs.

Gross written premium 1 255,442 -
Change in reserve for unearned insurance premium 1 (251,428)

Gross earned premium 4,014

Premiums ceded to reinsurers 1 (143,021) -
Change in reserve for unearned reinsurance premium 1 140,884

Net earned premiums 1,877 -
Fees and commission income 6 560 -
Investment income 2 40,865,734 23,701
Net realised gains and losses 3 - -
Fair value gains and losses 4 - -
Other income 5 260,940 -
Other revenue 41,127,234 23,701
Total Revenue 41,129,111 23,701
Gross benefits and claims paid 7 - -
Claims ceded to reinsurers 7 - -
Change in insurance contract liabilities 8 - -
Net benefits and claims - -
Finance costs 10 - -
Other operating and administrative expenses 9 (8,528,312) (1,393,168)
Other expenses (8,528,312) (1,393,168)
Total benefits, claims and other expenses (8,528,312) (1,393,168)
Profit before tax 32,600,799 (1,369,467)
Income Tax Expense 1" (9,755,136) -
Profit For the Year 22,845,663 (1,369,467)
Basic earnings per share 12 5.59 -

The notes to the financial statements as set out on schedules 01 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Subodh Lal Shrestha Khem Raj Lamichhane Dr. Jugal Bhurtel CA Sujan Kumar Kafle
Deputy General Manager Director Chairman Sujan Kafle LR Associates
Chartered Accountants

Ganesh Kadal Dr. Manik Lal Shrestha
Chief Finance Officer Alternate Director
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 32nd Ashad 2075

Cash flow from operating activities

Cash Received

Net premium income

Fee and Commission Income

Net Trading Income

Other Income

Cash Paid

Net Claim Paid

Fee and Comission Expense

Staff Expense

Other Expenses

Income Tax

Non cash ltems

Written back liabilities

Depreciation

Provision for Staff Bonus

Unexpired risk reserve provision

Income Receivable on investments

(Increase)/ Decrease of Current Assets

(Increase)/ Decrease in Financial Assets

(Increase)/ Decrease in Reinsurance Asset

(Increase)/ Decrease in Other Assets

Increase/ (Decrease) of Current Liabilities

Increase/ (Decrease) in Financial Liabilities

Increase/ (Decrease) in Other Liabilities

Net cash flow from operating activities (A)

Cash flow from investing activities

(Increase) / Decrease in Fixed Assets

(Increase ) / Decrease in Investment in Govt. & Govt. Guaranteed Securities
(Increase) / Decrease in Investment in Fixed Deposit of Banks & Financial Institutions
(Increase) / Decrease in Investment in Other Deposit of Banks & Financial Institutions
(Increase) / Decrease in Investment in Equity Share
(Increase) / Decrease in Investment in Preference Share / Debenture
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Investment

(Increase) / Decrease in Loans and Advances

Interest Income Received on Investment

Dividend Received

Rent Income

Interest Income Received on Loan

Net cash flow from investing activities (B)

Cash flow on financing activites

Interest Expence

Dividend Paid

(Increase) / Decrease in Equity

Net cash flow from financing activities (C)

Change in Exchange rate in Cash and Bank Balances (D)
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (E)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74

Rs. Rs.
263,377 -
1,877 -
560 -
260,940 -
(18,283,448) (1,393,168)
(5,088,400) -
(3,439,912) (1,393,168)
(9,755,136) -
(3,913,091) 2,083
(260,700) -
31,461 2,083
3,270,210 -
(6,954,062) -
(18,677,216) (753,555)
(9,863,989) (753,555)

(140,884)

(8,672,343) -
10,609,492 1,655,410
1,570,704 700,000
9,038,788 955,410
(30,000,887) (489,230)
(8,562,720) (19,815)
40,865,734 23,700
32,303,014 3,885
699,000,000 (0)
699,000,000 (0)
699,000,000 (0)
701,302,128 (485,345)
108,334 593,678
701,410,461 108,333

The notes to the financial statements as set out on schedules 01 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Subodh Lal Shrestha Khem Raj Lamichhane Dr. Jugal Bhurtel
Deputy General Manager Director Chairman
Ganesh Kadal Dr. Manik Lal Shrestha
Chief Finance Officer Alternate Director

CA Sujan Kumar Kafle

Sujan Kafle LR Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.
Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Statement of other Comprehensive Income
Year ended 32 Ashad 2075

Profit for the year
Gains /(losses) on re-measuring financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income
Gain/(loss) on Actuarial valuation of defined benefit liability
Gain/(loss) on Actuarial valuation of premium income
Total other comprehensive income
Deferred tax income /(expense) relating to components of other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

FY 2074-75| FY 2073-74

Rs Rs
22,845,663 (1,369,467)
22,845,663 (1,369,467)

The notes to the financial statements as set out on schedules 01 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Subodh Lal Shrestha
Deputy General Manager

Khem Raj Lamichhane
Director

Dr. Jugal Bhurtel
Chairman

Ganesh Kadal
Chief Finance Officer

Dr. Manik Lal Shrestha
Alternate Director

CA Sujan Kumar Kafle
Sujan Kafle LR Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.
Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 32 Ashad 2075

1 Net Premiums

FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74

Rs Rs

Gross written premium before adjustment 274,100 -
Transfer to deposit premium (18,658) -
Gross written premium after adjustment 255,442 -
Change in reserve for unearned insurance premium (251,428) -
Premiums ceded to reinsurers (143,021) -
Change in reserve for unearned reinsurance premium 140,884 -
1,877 -

1.1 Gross premiums on insurance contracts

Product classification of insurance and investment contracts
NFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts, requires contracts written by insurer to be classified as either ‘Insurance contracts’ or
‘Investment contracts’ depending in the level of insurance risk transferred.

Insurance contracts are those contracts when the Company (the insurer) has accepted significant insurance risk from
another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders, if a specified uncertain future event
(the insured event) adversely affects the policyholders. As a general guideline, the Company determines whether it
has significant insurance risk, by comparing benefits paid with benefits payable, if the insured event did not occur.
Insurance contracts can also transfer financial risk.

Investment contracts are those contracts that transfer significant financial risk and no significant insurance risk. Financial
risk is the risk of a possible future change in one or more of a specified interest rate, financial instrument price,
commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of price or rates, credit rating or credit index or other variables, provided
in the case of a non-financial variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract.

Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract for the remainder of
its lifetime, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this period, unless all rights and obligations are
extinguished or expire. Investment contracts can, however, be reclassified as insurance contracts after inception if
insurance risk becomes significant.

All the products sold by the Company are insurance contracts. Therefore, classified as insurance contracts under the
NFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts. Thus, the Company does not have any investment contracts within its product portfolio
as at the reporting date.

Revenue recognition of gross written premium
Gross premium (GP) represents the premium charged by the Company to underwrite risks. GP is accounted on an
accrual basis.

Non-life insurance gross premium comprises the total premiums received for the whole period of cover provided by

contracts entered into during the accounting period and are recognised on the date on which the policy commences.
Rebates that form part of the premium rate, such as no claim rebates, are deducted from the gross premium.

Continue...
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.
Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 32 Ashad 2075

Premium income for the year by major classes of business are as follows;

For the Year Ended
FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74
Rs Rs
Motor 71,986 -
Agricultural = -
Avaition - -
Engeneering - -
Fire 53,893 -
Marine 4,395 -
Miscellaneous 143,826 -
274,100 -

1.2 Premiums ceded to reinsurers on insurance contracts

Recognition of premium ceded to reinsurers

Non-life gross reinsurance premium comprises the total premium payable for the whole cover provided by contracts
entered into the period and is recognised on the date on which the policy incepts. Premium includes any adjustments
arising in the accounting period in respect of reinsurance contracts incepting in prior accounting periods.

Premium ceded to reinsurer for the year by major classes of business and by payee are as follows;

For the Year Ended

FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74
Class-wise Rs Rs
Motor 28,725 -
Agricultural -
Avaition -
Engeneering -
Fire 28,330 -
Marine 952 -
Miscellaneous 85,014 -
143,021 -

Payee-wise
Nepal Reinsurance Company 143,021 -
Less : Reinsurance Commission & Service Fee (33,897) -
Total Payable to Reinsurer 109,124 -
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.
Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Investment Income

FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74

Rs Rs

Interest income 36,539,556 23,701
Income from Other (Other than Fixed Deposits) 4,326,178

Dividend income - -

40,865,734 23,701

Interest income

Revenue recognition of interest income

Interest income is recognised in the statement of profit or loss as it accrues and is calculated by using the effective
interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life of the financial asset or liabilities (or, where appropriate, a shorter period) to
the carrying amount of the financial asset or liabilities. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company
estimates future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument, but not future credit losses.
The calculation of the effective interest rate includes all transaction costs and fees and points paid or received that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Transaction costs include incremental costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of a financial asset or liability.

FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74
Rs Rs

Government securities S
Commercial Banks Fixed Deposits 36,539,556 23,701
Development Banks Fixed Deposits - -
Citizen Investment Trust Units - -
Finance Companies Fixed Deposits - -
Debenture of Commercial Banks and Finance Companies - -
Saving & Revolving Account

36,539,556 23,701

Dividend income

Revenue recognition of dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.

FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74

Rs Rs
Dividend from Ordinary Shares of Public Limited Company - -
Dividend from Preference Shares - -

Net realised gains and losses

Net realised gains and losses recorded in the statement of profit or loss on investments include gains and losses on
financial assets. Gains and losses on the sale of investments are calculated as the difference between net sales
proceeds and the original or amortised cost and are recorded on occurrence of the sale transaction.

FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74

Rs Rs
Gain/(Loss) on sale of Mutual Fund = -
Gain/(Loss) from Sale of Equity investment - -
Gain/(Loss) from Sale of Other Investments - -
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Kamaladi, Kathmandu

4. Fair Value Gains and Losses

This includes the gains and losses arising from changes in fair value on financial instruments classified as financial

asset at fair value through profit or loss, if any.

Fair value gains and losses

FY 2074-75
Rs

FY 2073-74
Rs

5 Other Income

Other income includes disposal gains/ lossess on property, plant and equipment and miscellaneous income. Profit or
loss on sale of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the period in which the sale occurs and is classified under

other income.

FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74
Rs Rs
Written back liabilities 260,700
Other Direct Income 240
Foreign Exchange Income - -
Miscellaneous Income - -
Gain/(Loss) on Sale of Fixed Assets - -
260,940 -
6 Fees and Commission Income
FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74
Rs Rs
Reinsurance commission income 38,196 -
Unearned reinsurance commission income (37,636) -
560 -
7 Net benefits and Claims Paid
FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74
Rs Rs
Gross benefits and claims paid - -
Claims ceded to reinsurers - -
8 Change in Insurance Contract Liabilities
FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74
Rs Rs

Change in insurance contract outstanding claims provision
Change in unexpired risk reserve provision
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 32 Ashad 2075

9

9.1

Other Operating and Administrative Expenses

Recognition of other operating and administrative expenses
Other operating and administrative expenses are recognised on accrual basis. All expenditure incurred in the running
of the business and in maintaining the property, plant and equipment are charged to the statement of profit or loss.

FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74

Rs Rs
Staff expenses 5,088,400 -
Administrative expenses 3,408,211 1,391,085
Depreciation 31,461 2,083

Share Issue Expenses - -
Share Listing Expenses - -
Other share Related Expenses - -
Agent Commission - -
Reinsurance Commission expenses - -
Service Charge - -
Other Direct expenses 240 -
Impairment loss

8,528,312 1,393,168

Staff Expenses

Short-term Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related
service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-
sharing plans if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Defined Benefit Plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The company recognises
the changes in the defined benefit obligation under staff expenses in the statement of profit or loss. Company has
made provisison for gratuity and leave encashment for eligible employee. In current year, FY 2017.18, company being
in operation for 5 days only, provsion for Gratuity has been made and as eligibility criterion for Leave Enchasment is
not fulfilled, provision is not made.

Defined Contribution Plans

A defined contribution plan is a post employment plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay a further amount. Obligations for contributions to the
employees’ Provident Fund under the employees’ as per Labour Act, 2074 as amended, covering all employees are
recognised as an employee benefit expense in the statement of profit or loss when they are due. The Company
contributes 10% of basic emoluments of employees' as provident fund.

For the Year Ended
FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74
Rs Rs
Wages and salaries - -
Staff benefit expenses - -
Provision for Staff Bonus 3,270,210 -
Employees Related Expenses 1,644,458 -
Contributions made to the Employees' Provident Fund (EPF) 94,780
Contributions made to the Employees' Trust Fund (ETF) - -
Defined benefit plan expenses 78,952 -
Total employee benefit expenses 5,088,400 -
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9.2 Administrative Expenses

FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74

Rs Rs

Rent 1,750,000 60,000
Water & Electricity 70,195 -
Repair & Maintenance 4,000 -
Communication Expenses 78,282 -
Printing & Stationery 123,970 -
Miscellaneous Office & Materials Expenses 50,984 -
Conveyance Expenses - -
Insurance Levy- Net 1,311 -
Fuel expenses 84,636 -
Travelling Expenses 245,010 400
Dispose of Fixed Assets - 5,185
Agent Tranning Expense 25,770 -
Agent Others - -
Insurance Premium 29,821 -
Security Expense 17,500 -
Consultancy Fee - 904,000
Government Fee - 390,000
Legal and Consultancy Fee 64,522 -
News Papers, Books & Periodical 4,170 -
Publicity and Advertisement 102,576 -
Business Promotion Expense - -
Guest Entertainment Expenses 26,030 -
Gift & Donation - -
Expense Related to Board Meeting - -
Expense Related to Committee/Sub-Committee - -
Annual General Meeting Expense - -
Audit Fee 35,000 10,000
Expense Related to Audit - -
Bank Charges 3,410 -
Rates and Taxes - -
Revenue Stamp - -
Anniversary expenses - -
Office rent - -
Office expenses 17,728 -
Service fee 131,160 -
Miscellaneous 174,437 -
Opening ceremony expenses 355,699 -
Tax renewal expenses - -
Festival expenses - -
Website and app development expenses = -
Crops and live stock expenses - -
Foreign Exchange loss - -

Continue...
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Others

Seminar Expense

Computer Expense
Subscription & Renewal Fees
Postage and courier
Miscellaneous Expense
Cleaning Expenses
Generator Expenses
Software Expenses

Penalty

Provision for Investment Loss (Share)
Other Provision

Total

FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74
Rs Rs

- 21,500

12,000 -
3,408,211 1,391,085

Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 32 Ashad 2075

10 Finance Costs

Finance costs include the finance charges in respect of Bank loan, other Financial liabilities at amortized cost and

in respect of finance leases as per NAS 17 Leases.

Interest Expense

FY 2074-75
Rs

FY 2073-74
Rs

11 Income tax Expense

Recognition of Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current and deferred taxes are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, when it is recognised in equity.

FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74
Rs Rs
Income Tax Expenses (9,613,966) -

Deferred Tax Expenses/(Income) (141,170)
(9,755,136) -

11.1 Deferred Tax Expenses/(Income)

FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74
Rs Rs

GAAP Deferred tax expenses/(Income) (141,170)
NFRS Adjustment Deferred tax effect - -
(141,170) -

First Annual Report : 25



AiferdT SRR oA Uil fot.
Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.
Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended 32 Ashad 2075

12 Basic Earnings Per Share (Eps)
Company presents basic and diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) for its ordinary shares.

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, which comprise share
options granted to employees.

FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74
Rs Rs
For the year ended

Profit for the year (Rs.) 22,845,663 -
Weighted average number of shares 4,087,500 -
Basic earnings per share (Rs.) 5.59 -

Weighted average number of shares
Issued ordinary shares as at 1 Shrawan 10,000 -
Shares issued during the year 4,077,500 -
4,087,500 -

Diluted earnings per share

There were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding at any time during the year. Therefore, diluted earnings

per share is same as the basic earnings per share stated above.

13 Dividends

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability and deducted from equity when they are approved by the
Company’s shareholders. Interim dividends are deducted from equity when they are paid.

Dividends proposed by the Board of Directors after the reporting date is not recognised as a liability and is only

disclosed as a note to the financial statements.

Final dividend

Final dividend proposed (Rs.)
Number of ordinary shares
Final dividend per share (Rs.)

FY 2074-75
Rs

FY 2073-74
Rs
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14

141

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Recognition of fair value through profit or loss financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and those designated upon
initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Investments typically bought with the intention to sell in the near
future are classified as held for trading. Attributable transaction costs are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
as incurred. These investments are initially recorded at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are remeasured
at fair value.

Changes in fair value are recorded in ‘fair value gains and losses’ in the statement of profit or loss. Interest is accrued
and presented in ‘investment income’ using the Effective Interest rate (EIR). Dividend income is recorded in the
‘investment income' when the right to the payment has been established. The Company will evaluate its financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (held for trading) by considering whether the intent to sell them in the near
term is still appropriate.

For investments to be designated as at Fair Value through Profit or Loss, the following criteria must be met:

The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring
the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or losses on a different basis.

FY 2074-75 FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74
Rs Rs Rs
Quoted Equities - - -
Quoted Equities
FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74 FY 2072-73
Carrying Value Fair Value | Carrying Value Fair Value | Carrying Value Fair Value
Rs Rs Rs Rs Rs Rs

First Annual Report : 27



AMferdT SRR oA Uil fot.
Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 32 Ashad 2075

15 Financial Assets at Fair Value Through other Comprehensive Income

Recognition of Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Fair value through OCI (FVTOCI) financial investments include equity shares. Equity investments classified as fair
value through OCI are those that are neither classified as held for trading nor designated at fair value through profit

or loss.

After the initial measurement, FVTOCI are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in the available-for-sale reserve. Dividends earned whilst
FVTOCI are recognised in the statement of profit or loss as ‘Investment income’ when the right of the payment has
been established. When the asset is de-recognised, cumulative gain or loss is in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income is transferred to the statement of profit or loss. If the asset is determined to be impaired,
the cumulative loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and removed from the available-for-sale reserve.

FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74 FY 2072-73
Rs Rs Rs
Quoted Equities - - -
Unquoted Equities(Nepal reinsurance company share) - - -
Mutual Funds - - -
Citizen Investment Trust Units - - -
Less: Impairment - - -
15.1 Quoted Equity Shares
FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74 FY 2072-73
Carrying Value Fair Value | Carrying Value Fair Value | Carrying Value Fair Value
Rs Rs Rs Rs Rs Rs
15.2 Unquoted Equity Shares
FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74 FY 2072-73
Carrying Value Fair Value | Carrying Value Fair Value | Carrying Value Fair Value
Rs Rs Rs Rs Rs Rs
15.3 Quoted Mutual Fund Shares
FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74 FY 2072-73
Carrying Value Fair Value | Carrying Value Fair Value | Carrying Value Fair Value
Rs Rs Rs Rs Rs Rs
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16

17

Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets at amortized cost includes those financial assets that are held by the entity for long term purpose

and intend to hold till maturity.

The asset is measured at the amount recognized at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the
cumulative amortization of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and any loss allowance.
Interest income is calculated using the effective interest method and is recognized in "Investment income" in statement

of profit or loss.

Government Securities

Commercial Banks Fixed Deposits
Development Banks Fixed Deposits
Finance Companies Fixed Deposits
Foreign Bonds

Debenture/Bond of Financial Institutions

FY 2074-75
Rs

FY 2073-74
Rs

FY 2072-73
Rs

Other Financial Assets

Other financial assets includes financial assets other than the above normal classification of financial assets measured
at amortized cost, fair value through profit or loss and fair value through other comprehensive income. This is stated

at net of any impairment recognized.

Security Deposit

Advance Gold and Silver

Staff Advances

Government Grant Receivable
Income Receivable on investments
Deposit For Utilities

Claim Advance

Other Advance

Advance To Other

Gratuity Fund

Business Advance to Staff
Miscellaneous Deposit

Less: Impairment Provisions (please specify)

FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74 FY 2072-73
Rs Rs Rs

- 2,000 2,000

6,954,062 - -
12,000 - -

- 57,367 57,367

- 780,000 30,000

6,966,062 839,367 89,367
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18 Other Assets

FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74 FY 2072-73

Rs Rs Rs

Stock of tickets 1,420 - -
Prepaid Employee Benefits - - -
Prepayments 7,841,839 - -
Seed Money to Insurance Promotion Board 200,000 - -
Other Transit Items ( including cheques) - - -
Branch Adjustment Accounts - - -
Written off / Due Adjustable Outstanding Expenses - - -
VAT Receivable 629,084 - -
8,672,343 - -

19 Cash and short-term deposits

Cash and short term deposits in the statement of financial position comprise cash at bank and on hand, call deposits
and fixed deposits with a maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
net of any provisions.

FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74 FY 2072-73

Rs Rs Rs
Cash Balance 1,596 - -
Bank Balance 8,867,718 108,334 593,678
Commercial Banks Fixed Deposits 650,000,000 - -

Development Banks Fixed Deposits - - -
Finance Companies Fixed Deposits =
Commercial Banks Call Deposits 42,541,147 - -
Development Banks Call Deposits - - -
Finance Companies Call Deposits = - -
Less: Impairment Provisions

701,410,461 108,334 593,678
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20 Insurance Receivables

Insurance receivables includes amount receivable related to insurance businesses such as due from other insurance
companies, due from reinsurers.

Reinsurance receivables are recognised when due and measured on initial recognition at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable.

Reinsurance assets are derecognised when the contractual rights are extinguished or expire or when the contract is
transferred to another party.

Reinsurance assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date or more frequently when an indication of
impairment arises during the reporting year. Impairment occurs when there is objective evidence as a result of an event
that occurred after initial recognition of the reinsurance asset that the Company may not receive all outstanding amounts
due under the terms of the contract and the event has a reliably measurable impact on the amounts that the Company
will receive from the reinsurer. The impairment loss is recorded in the statement of profit or loss.

FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74 FY 2072-73

Rs Rs Rs
Outstanding from Other Insurance Companies - - -
Sundry Debtors 5 - -
Outstanding from Reinsurers 5 - -
Outstanding premium receivable > - -
Less: Impairment provisions = - -

20.1 Assessment of Impairment of Insurance Receivables

The Board of Directors has assessed potential impairment loss of insurance receivables as at 31 Ashad 2073, 31
Ashad 2074 and 32 Ashad 2075. Based on the assessment, it was concluded that there is no requirement for an
additional impairment loss provision other than amounts provided.

20.2 Analysis of Impairment Provision on Insurance Receivables

FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74
Age category| Provision for| Age category| Provision for
impairment impairment
0 - 30 days - - - -
31 - 60 days - - - -
61 - 90 days - - - -
Over 90 days - - - -
FY 2072-73
Age category | Provision for
impairment
0 - 30 days - -
31 -60 days - -
61 - 90 days - -
Over 90 days - -
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20.3 Fair value of Insurance Receivables

The carrying amount disclosed above approximates the fair value at the reporting date.

21 Trade and other Payables

Trade and other payables includes the payable to trade suppliers and any other payables other than the financial
liabilities and other liabilities. These payables are recorded at the amount expected to be payable as at the reporting

date.
FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74 FY 2072-73
Rs Rs Rs
TDS payable 134,395 14,500 5,100
VAT Payable > - -
Service fee payable o - -
Payable to employee o - -
Payable to Board o - -
Dividend Payable = - -
Payable Survey Fee = - -
Payable to Other = 892,010 -
134,395 906,510 5,100

22 Insurance Payables

Insurance payables includes amount payable related to insurance businesses such as due to agents, due to other

insurance companies, due to reinsurers.

Insurance payables are recognised when due and measured on initial recognition at the fair value of the consideration

paid or payable.

Insurance payables are derecognised when the contractual obligations are extinguished or expire or when the contract

is transferred to another party.

Outstanding payable to Agents

Due to Other insurance Company
Insruance Levy Payable to Beema Samiti
Payable to Reinsurers

FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74 FY 2072-73
Rs Rs Rs

109,124 - -
2,741 - -
111,865 - -
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23 Share Capital

The Company has issued ordinary shares that are classified as equity. Incremental external costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of these shares are recognised in equity, net of tax.

FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74 FY 2072-73

Rs Rs Rs

Shares as at 1st Shrawan 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Add: Adjustment - - -
Add: Bonus Shared Issued - - -
Add: Right Shared Issued 600,000,000 - -
Add: Called-Up capital 99,000,000 -
Add: Calls in Advance - - -
Shares as at Ashad End 700,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

23.1 Reconciliation of No. of Shares

FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74 FY 2072-73

Rs Rs Rs

Ordinary Shares as at 1st Shrawan 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Add: Adjustment - - -
Add: Bonus Shared Issued - - -
Add: Right Shared Issued 6,000,000 - -
Add: Addition this year - -
Add: Calls in Advance - - -
Ordinary Shares as at Ashad End 7,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

23.2 Rights of Ordinary Shareholders

All issued shares are fully paid and shares of the Company are not listed on the Nepal stock exchange being non
issuance of Intial Public Offering. On being listed, the holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends
as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at General Meetings of the Company.
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24 Reserves & Surplus

Other Capital Reserves
Insurance Reserve
Insurance Fund
Catastrophic reserves
Total

General Reserves
Retained Earnings
NFRS First Time Adoption Transition Adjsutment
Total

Other Reserves
Other Free reserve
Deferred tax reserve
Fair value reserve
Actuarial reserve
Total

FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74 FY 2072-73
Rs Rs Rs
11,544,066 - -
1,138,939 - -
12,683,005 - -
8,391,540 (1,858,915) (489,447)
(87,796) - -
8,303,744 (1,858,915) (489,447)

24.1 Fair Value Reserve

Fair value reserves comprise the cumulative net change in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income and is carried forward until the respective assets are derecognised

Balance as at 1 Shrawan
NFRS Remeasurement Impact:
Statement of financial position
Other comprehensive income
Balance as at Ashad end

FY 2074-75
Rs

FY 2073-74
Rs

FY 2072-73
Rs

24.2 Actuarial Reserve

Actuarial reserve include the actuarial gains/(losses) arising from valuation of leave encashment liability as required

by NAS 19 - Employee Benefits.

Balance as at 1 Shrawan
NFRS Remeasurement Impact:
Opening restatement

Other comprehensive income
Profit or loss

Balance as at Ashad end

FY 2074-75
Rs

FY 2073-74
Rs

FY 2072-73
Rs
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25 Share Premium
FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74 FY 2072-73
Rs Rs Rs
Share premium = - _
26 Current Tax Assets/ Liabilities
Current income tax liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to be paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income.
FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74 FY 2072-73
Rs Rs Rs
Income Tax Liabilities 9,613,966 - -
Income Tax Receivables - - -
Advance Tax Payment 10,681,768 46,178 42,623
(1,067,802) (46,178) (42,623)
26.1 Current Tax Assets/ Liabilities
FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74 FY 2072-73
Rs Rs Rs
Balance as at 1st Shrawan
Advance Payment Transferred - - -
Current Year Provision
(Over) / under provision in respect of previous years - - -
Payment of tax - - -
Balance as at 31st Ashar - - -
27 Deferred Tax Assets/ Liabilities

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss.

In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests
in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised except
where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

continue...
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271

27.2

Carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the statement of profit or loss is recognised outside statement of
profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set-off current tax
assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same

taxation authority.

Valuation of Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities

FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74 FY 2072-73
Rs Rs Rs
Deferred tax Assets 55,766 - -
Deferred tax liabilities 196,936 - -
252,702 - -
Deferred Tax Asset
FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74
Temporary Tax Effect Temporary Tax Effect
Difference Difference
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Property, plant and equipment
Insurance contract liabilities 185,887 55,766 - -
Fair value gains recognised in other
comprehensive income - - - -
185,887 55,766 - -
Deferred Tax Liabilities
FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74
Temporary Tax Effect Temporary Tax Effect
Difference Difference
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Property, plant and equipment 594,523 178,357 - -
Grauity (78,953) (23,686) - -
Reinsurance Asset 140,884 42,265 - -
Fair value gains recognised in other
comprehensive income - - - -
656,454 196,936 - -
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28 Other Financial Liabilities

Other financial liabilities include financial liabilities other than the normal classification of financial liabilities measured

at amortized cost.

Audit fee payable

Sundry Creditor

Deposit Received

Other Payable( Unknown share subscription)
Gratuity/Pension Fund

Payable to Associates Co

Employees Leave Fund

Deposit Premium

Unearned reinsurance Commission income
PF & CIT Payable

FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74 FY 2072-73

Rs Rs Rs

- 8,500 8,500

1,403,439 - -

78,952 - -

- 700,000 -

19,273 - -
37,636

376,611 - -

1,915,911 708,500 8,500

29  Other Liabilities

Other liabilities includes the amount of provisions made for staff bonus and any other provisions determined in

accordance with the requirements of NAS 37.

Provision for staff bonus

Office Rent Payable

Provision For Dividend

Impairment Provision

Provison for Doubtful Debt for sundry creditors
Provision for other losses

Provision for salary

Provision for debt for reinsurers

Provision for VAT

FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74 FY 2072-73
Rs Rs Rs
3,270,210 - -

- 260,700 206,700

3,270,210 260,700 206,700
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30

30.1

Insurance Contract Liabilities
Provision for unexpired risk reserve

Provision for unexpired risk represents premiums received for risks that have not yet expired. Generally, the reserve
is released over the term of the contract and is recognised as premium income.

As required by NFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts, the Company performs a Liability Adequacy Test (LAT) in respect of
non-life contract liabilities with the assistance of an external actuary.

Provision for gross outstanding claims & unexpired risk reserve

Non-life insurance contract liabilities are recognised when contracts are entered into and premiums are charged.
These liabilities are known as the outstanding claims provision, which are based on the estimated ultimate cost of
all claims incurred but not settled at the reporting date, whether reported or not, together with related claims handling
costs and reduction for the expected value of salvage and other recoveries.

The liability is not discounted for the time value of money. No provision for equalisation or catastrophe reserves is
recognised. The liabilities are de-recognised when the contract expires, is discharged or is cancelled. Total provision
for Unexpired Risk Reserve was done to the tune of Nrs. 65,541. Same was reversed and total reserve to tune of
Nrs. 251,428 was made. Net movement in the Unexpired Risk Reserve is of Nrs. 185,887.

Note FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74 FY 2072-73

Rs Rs Rs

Insurance contract outstanding claims provision 30.1 - - -
Incurred But not Reported Claims 30.1 - - -
Unexpired Premium Reserve 30.1 251,428 - -
251,428 - -

Liability Adequacy Test and Assumptions

A Liability Adequacy Test (LAT) was performed by Global risk consultants Mumbai, a firm of professional actuaries
as at 32 Ashad 2075, 31 Ashad 2074 and 31 Ashad 2073 as required by NFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts in order to
assess the adequacy of the carrying amount of the provision for unexpired risk. The valuation is based on internationally
accepted actuarial methods . According to the report issued by Global risk consultants Mumbai, the liability carried
forward by the Company was adequate. Hence, no provision was made for premium deficiency for the year ended.
At each reporting date, the Company reviews its unexpired risk and a liability adequacy test is performed to determine
whether there is any overall excess of expected claims and deferred acquisition costs over unearned premiums.
This calculation uses current estimates of future contractual cash flows after taking account of the investment return
expected to arise on assets relating to the relevant non-life insurance technical provisions. If these estimates show
that the carrying amount of the unearned premiums is inadequate, the deficiency is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss by setting up a provision for liability adequacy.

Valuation Assumptions used by Acturies are :

1. Accounting Policy:
NFRS 4 Accounting Policy document is a policy framework which specifies the fundamental approach of the
Company to implementation of the NFRS 4 in the background of regulatory specifications (of Bima Samiti) for
estimation of various liability provisions. The FY 2017-18 being the first year of application of the NFRS 4, it is
expected that this Accounting Policy document shall undergo changes so as to capture directions of the Bima
Samiti including experience of the Company as the business develops.

Continue...
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2. Cash Flow :
Cash Flows considered and estimation are as follows:

Income side;

- Premium

- Reinsurance claims

- Reinsurance commission

Outflow side;

- Claims

- Reinsurance premium

- Commission for intermediation
- Expenses

The current liability estimates are not based on present value of future cash flows, the portfolio size being very
small. Alternative methods have been applied.

3. Valuation Methods and Assumptions
For all one-year policies, except for Marine Cargo Open Cover Policies, the UPR is determined on 1/365th basis,
assuming the risk is uniform over the policy year.
b) For shorter than oneyear Marine Cargo policies, UPR is determined:
i. Using straight-line method over the policy term as in (a) above; or
ii. In the absence of data required for (i) above, using the last three months’ premium for the relevant period as
per Article 69 (2) of Implementing Regulations.

4. Discounting Policy:
No discounting has been used. The estimates of liability amounts for non-life insurance contracts are always
carried out on non discount basis for 1) liability terms being short and 11) the Pricing (determination of premium)
is on non discount basis.

5. Aggregation practices
Principles of aggregation:
“When applying an existing accounting policy, the aggregation practice follows that practice already established
in that policy. When using an NAS 37 measure of the future cash flows, the test “shall be made at the level of

a portfolio of contracts that are subject to broadly similar risks and managed together as a single portfolio.”

The portfolio of insurance contracts as at the reporting date is very small, hence no aggregation has been
considered.

30.2 Provision for Gross Premium

FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74 FY 2072-73

Rs Rs Rs

Gross Gross Gross

Liabilities Liabilities Liabilities

Opening Balance - - -

Gross Premium Written during the Year 255,442 - -

Premium Recognised during the Year 4,014 -
Unearned Premium Reserve transferred to

Unexpired Risk Reserve 251,428 - -
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31

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are tangible items that are held for servicing or for administrative purposes and
are expected to be used for more than one year. Property, plant and equipment include office equipment, furniture
and fixures and motor vehicles.

Basis of recognition

Property, plant and equipment are recognised if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the asset
will flow to the Company and cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Measurement

An item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies for recognition as an asset is initially measured at its cost. Cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and cost incurred subsequently to add
to or replace a part of it. The cost of self constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use and the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring at the site on which they are located. Purchased software that is integral to
the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as a part of computer equipment.

The Company applies the cost model to plant and equipment and records at cost of purchase or construction together
with any incidental expenses thereon less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Repairs and maintenance

Repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred. Cost of major renovations is included in the carrying amount of the assets when it is probable that future
economic benefits in excess of the most recently assessed standard of performance of the existing assets will flow
to the Company and the renovation replaces an identifiable part of the asset. Major renovations are depreciated during
the remaining useful life of the related asset.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of property, plant and equipment to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation charge begins when an assets is available for
use. The estimated useful lives are as follows;

Asset Class Useful Life
Buildings 50
Furniture and Fixtures 3-5
Computer & Accessories 3-5
Motor Vehicles 5-8
Office Equipment 3-5
Miscellaneous Assets 3-5
Leasehold Improvement 5

De-recognition

Carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from it. Gain or loss arising from the de-recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment
is included in the statement of profit or loss when the item is de-recognised.

31.1 Capitalisation of borrowing cost

There were no capitalised borrowing costs relating to the acquisition of PPE during the year
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31.2 Assessment of impairment of Property, plant and equipment

The Board of Directors has assessed the potential impairment indicators of Property, plant and equipment as at 31
Ashad 2073, 31 Ashad 2074 and 32 Ashad 2075. Based on the assessment, no impairment indicators were identified
and therefore no impairment provision is required to be made in the financial statements as at the reporting date in
respect of property plant and equipments.

32 Intangible Assets
The Company's intangible assets include the value of acquired computer software.
Basis of recognition
An intangible asset is recognised if it is probable that future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will
flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.
Software acquired by the Company is initially measured at cost and subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Subsequent Expenditure
Subsequent to initial recognition, the intangible asset is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.
Subsequent expenditure on software assets is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.
Amortisation
Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over the period of services to be rendered. Amortisation is
recorded in the statement of profit or loss.
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life. Amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in
the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset
are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and they are treated as changes
in accounting estimates.
Amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
expense category consistent with the function of the intangible asset.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of intangible assets to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives as follows;
Asset Class Useful Life Amortisation Method
Computer Software 5 Year SLM
De-recognition
An intangible asset is de-recognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from it. The gain
or loss arising from the de-recognition of such intangible assets is included in the statement of profit or loss when
the item is de-recognised.
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321

33

33.1

Impairment
An impairment review is performed whenever there is an indication of impairment. When the recoverable amount
is less than the carrying value, an impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Intangibles
Rs

Cost:
At 31 Ashad 2074 -
Additions -
Disposals -

At 32 Ashad 2075 -
Accumulated Amortization
At 31 Ashad 2074 -
Additions -
Disposals -
At 32 Ashad 2075 -
Net book value:
Cost -
Accumulated Amortization -
At 31 Ashad 2073 -
At 31 Ashad 2074 -
At 32 Ashad 2075 -

Assessment of Impairement of Intangible Assets

The Board of Directors has assessed the potential impairment indicators of Intangible assets as at 31 Ashad 2073,
31 Ashad 2074 and 32 Ashad 2075. Based on the assessment, no impairment indicators were identified.

Related Party Transactions

The Company has not carried out any business with parties who are defined as related parties in NAS 24 - Related
Party Disclosures.

Details of the related party transactions are reported below.
Transactions and Outstanding Balances with the Key Management Personnel

According to the NAS 24 - Related Party Disclosures, key management personnel are those having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity.

Sanima Insurance company considers its Board of Directors and their immediate family members as key management
personnel of the Company.

KMPs of the Sanima Insurance Company Ltd. includes members of Board of directors and Chief Executive Officer
namely:

Dr. Jugal Bhurtel Chairman

Mr. Arun Kumar Ojha Director

Mr. Khem Raj Lamichhane Director

Dr. Manik Lal Shrestha Alternate Director
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a)

b)

34

Transactions

Key management personnel compensation

Transactions
For the year ended FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74| FY 2072-73
Rs Rs Rs

Short term employment benefits - - -

Other transactions with key management personnel

For the year ended FY 2074-75( FY 2073-74| FY 2072-73
Rs Rs Rs

Accounting Clasification and Fair Value

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing
parties in an arm’s length transaction on the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either;

In the principal market for the asset or liability or;
In the absence of the principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

Fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. When available,
the Company measures the fair value of an instrument using quoted prices in an active market for that instrument.
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available and represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. For units in unit trusts, fair value is determined by reference
to published bid-values. If a market for a financial instrument is not active, then the Company establishes fair value
using a valuation technique.

Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length transactions between knowledgeable, willing parties (if
available), reference to the current fair value of other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash
flow analyses and option pricing models. The chosen valuation technique makes maximum use of market inputs,
relies as little as possible on estimates specific to the Company, incorporates all factors that market participants
would consider in setting a price, and is consistent with accepted economic methodologies for pricing financial
instruments. Inputs to valuation techniques reasonably represent market expectations and measures of the risk-
return factors inherent in the financial instrument. The Company calibrates valuation techniques and tests them for
validity using prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on other available
observable market data.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is the transaction price, i.e. the fair
value of the consideration given or received, unless the fair value of that instrument is evidenced by comparison with
other observable current market transactions in the same instrument, i.e. without modification or repackaging, or
based on a valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable markets.

When transaction price provides the best evidence of fair value at initial recognition, the financial instrument is initially
measured at the transaction price and any difference between this price and the value initially obtained from a
valuation model is subsequently recognised in the statement of profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life
of the instrument but not later than when the valuation is supported wholly by observable market data or the transaction
is closed out.

Continue...
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Any difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the amount that would be determined at that date
using a valuation technique in a situation in which the valuation is dependent on unobservable is not recognised in
the statement of profit or loss immediately, but is recognised over the life of the instrument on an appropriate basis
or when the instrument is redeemed, transferred or sold, or the fair value becomes observable. Assets and long
positions are measured at a bid price; liabilities and short positions are measured at an asking price. Fair values
reflect the credit risk of the instrument and include adjustments to take account of the credit risk of the Company
and the counter party where appropriate. Fair value estimates obtained from models are adjusted for any other
factors, such as liquidity risk or model uncertainties; to the extent that the Company believes a third-party market
participant would take them into accounting pricing a transaction.

Financial assets and liabilities based on the accounting classification with their carrying values and fair values are
tabulated below.

As at 32 Ashad 2075

Fair value Fair value
through | through other .
profit or | comprehensive | Amortized | Total carrying )

loss income cost amount Fair value

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Financial assets
Measured at fair value through PL - - - - -
Measured at fair value through OCI - - - - -
Measured at amortised cost - - - - -
Reinsurance receivables - - - - -
Other Insurance receivables - - - - -
Total - - - - -
Financial liabilities
Reinsurance payables - - - - -
Other financial liabilities - - - - -

As at 31 Ashad 2074

Fair value Fair value
through | through other .
profit or | comprehensive | Amortized | Total carrying )

loss income cost amount Fair value

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Financial assets
Measured at fair value through PL - - - - -
Measured at fair value through OCI - - - - -
Measured at amortised cost - - - - -
Reinsurance receivables - - - - -
Other Insurance receivables - - - - -
Total - - - - -
Financial liabilities
Reinsurance payables - - - - -
Other financial liabilities - - - - -

Continue...
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34.1

As at 31 Ashad 2073

Financial assets

Fair value Fair value
through | through other .
profit or [ comprehensive | Amortized | Total carrying .

loss income cost amount Fair value

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Measured at fair value through PL - - - - -
Measured at fair value through OCI - - - - -
Measured at amortised cost - - - - -
Reinsurance receivables - - - - -
Other Insurance receivables - - - - -
Total - - - - -

Financial liabilities

Reinsurance payables - - - - -
Other financial liabilities - - - - -

Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy

Valuation of fair value of financial instruments.

Determination of fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded on the statement of financial position
for which there is no observable market price are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include
the use of mathematical techniques. The inputs to these models are derived from observable market data where
possible, but if this is not available, judgment is required to establish their fair values.

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by
valuation technique.

Level 1: Listed/quoted (adjusted) prices in active markets for identical instruments are available. The Company
measures the fair value of a financial instrument using active listed/quoted prices or dealer price quotations and
managers buying price. A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are
readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory
agency and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

Level 2: Other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are
observable, either directly or indirectly. This category includes instruments valued using; quoted market prices
in active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are
considered less than active; or other valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly
observable from market data.

Level 3: Techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based
on observable market data. Non-market observable input means that fair values are determined, in whole or in
part, using a valuation technique (model) based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from
observable current market transactions in the same instrument, nor are they based on available market data.
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34.2 Fair Value Measurement

The following table analyses financial assets measured at fair value at the reporting date, by the level in the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorised.

As at 32 Ashad 2075 31 Ashad 2074
Level 1| Level 2| Level 3 Total| Level 1| Level 2| Level 3 Total

Financial assets at
fair value through OCI
Quoted equities - - - - - - - -
Unquoted equities - - - - - - - -
Quoted mutual funds - - - - - - - -
Financial assets at
fair value through PL
Quoted equities - - - - - - - -
Unquoted equities - - - - - - - -
Quoted mutual funds - - - - - - - -
Total - - - - - - - -

As at 31 Ashad 2073
Level 1| Level 2| Level 3 Total

Financial assets at fair value through OCI
Quoted equities - - - -
Unquoted equities - - - -
Quoted mutual funds - - - -

Financial assets at fair value through PL
Quoted equities - - - -
Unquoted equities - - - -
Quoted mutual funds - - - -
Total - - - -
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35 Employee Defined Benefit Obligations

Defined Contribution Plans

35.1

As at 32 Ashad 2075 31 Ashad 2074| 31 Ashad 2073
Rs. Rs. Rs.

Employees' Provident Fund 94,780 - -
Employees' Gratuity - - -
94,780 - -

Recognition and measurement of employee defined benefit obligations

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The liability recognised
in the financial statements in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation
as at the reporting date. The value of defined benefit obligation is calculated by a qualified Actuary as at the reporting
date, using the Projected Unit Credit (PUC) method as recommended by NAS 19 - Employee Benefits. The Actuarial
valuation involves making assumptions about discount rate, salary increment rate and balance service period of
employees. Due to the long-term nature of the plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty.

The re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability which comprises actuarial gains and losses are charged or
credited to the statement of other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. The assumptions based
on which the results of the actuarial valuation was determined, are included in Note 35.2.4 to the financial statements.

Cost of defined benefit obligations (gratuity) is determined on funded basis as per provision of Labour Act, 2074 as
amended. Same Act, has mandated to contribute 8.33% of basic salary on monthly basis. Being funded benefit,
actuarial valuation is not required

Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Defined Benefit Plans - Provision for Employee Benefits

As at

Present value of unfunded obligation

32 Ashad 2075
Rs.

31 Ashad 2074
Rs.

31 Ashad 2073
Rs.

35.2 Movement in the Present Value of the Employee

Benefits

As at 1 Shrawan

Expenses recognised in statement of profit or loss

Payments during the year

Actuarial loss recognised in statement of
comprehensive income

As at 32/31 Ashad

32 Ashad 2075
Rs.

31 Ashad 2074
Rs.

31 Ashad 2073
Rs.

35.2.1

Expenses Recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended

Interest cost
Current service cost

32 Ashad 2075
Rs.

31 Ashad 2074
Rs.

31 Ashad 2073
Rs.
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35.2.2 Expenses Recognised in Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended

Actuarial loss

32 Ashad 2075
Rs.

31 Ashad 2074
Rs.

31 Ashad 2073
Rs.

35.2.3 Valuation of Employee Benefit Obligations

Cost of defined benefit obligations (gratuity) is determined on funded basis as per provision of Labour Act, 2074
as amended. Same Act, has mandated to contribute 8.33% of basic salary on monthly basis. Being funded benefit,

actuarial valuation is not required.

35.2.4 Principal Actuarial Assumptions Used

36

Acturial information

32 Ashad 2075

31 Ashad 2074

31 Ashad 2073

(9)

Discount rate
Salary increase

Incidence of withdrawal

Mortality rates
Disability rates

Employee information
(a) Average age - - -
(b) Average service period (years) - - -
(c) Expected future working life time (years) - - -
(d) Number of employees - - -

Risk Management Framework
(a) Governance framework

The Board of Directors of the Company has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company’s risk management framework.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company
to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies
and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions, products and services offered. The
Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and
constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Board is ultimately responsible for monitoring compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and
procedures. The Board is assisted in these functions by internal audit department and the Board Audit Committee.
The internal audit department undertakes both regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures,
the results of which are reported to the Board.

(b) Regulatory framework

Regulators are primarily interested in protecting the rights of policyholders and monitor them closely to ensure that
the Company is satisfactorily managing affairs for policyholders' benefit. At the same time, regulators are also
interested in ensuring that the Company maintains an appropriate solvency position to meet unforeseen liabilities
arising from economic shocks or natural disasters.

As an insurer, the operations of the Company are subject to regulatory supervision of the Insurance Board of Nepal.
The Company has taken necessary action to comply with and complied with applicable regulations throughout the
year.

Continue...
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(c) Insurance and financial risk

(i) Financial risks
Nature and extent of risk arising from financial instruments
The Company has exposure to the following risks from financial instruments.
Credit risk
Liquidity risk
Market risk
Concentration risk

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks and the Company’s
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risks.

e Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company, if a customer or counter-party to a financial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations in accordance with agreed terms and arises principally from the Company’s
premium receivables, reinsurance receivables, investments in debt securities and deposits with financial institutions
such as time deposits, demand deposits, etc.

Management of Credit Risk - Insurance Receivables
There is no policy for providing Credit facility against issued policy document as per regulatory restriction.

Management of Credit Risk - Reinsurance Receivables
Credit risk with regard to reinsurance receivables is mitigated by selecting the reinsurers with higher credit ratings
and reviewing their ratings periodically. The following table depicts the reinsurers of the Company with their ratings.

Reinsurer Rating| Issuing agency
Nepal reinsurance company limited - -
Other foreign reinsurer (please specify) - -

Management of Credit Risk - Financial Investments (Except Listed Equity Securities)

The Company evaluates the credit ratings of the respective investee and/or respective issue prior to the investment
decision are made. In addition, the Company focuses on tolerable levels concentration risk and portfolio monitoring
in line with the Company’s risk appetite.

Management of Credit Risk - Cash at Bank
The Company's exposure to credit risk with relevant to cash and cash equivalents is minimal since these balances
are maintained at banks and finance companies with high credit ratings.

Collateral Adequacy
Being restriction on credit facility floating, collatoral adequacy is not applicable in case of Sanima Insurance Limited.

e Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. In respect of catastrophic events, there is also
a liquidity risk associated with timing differences between gross cash out-flows and expected reinsurance recoveries.
As per requirement of NFRS, adequte provision as per Liablity Adequacy Test conducted by Fellow Actuary is being
made.

Management of liquidity risk
The following controls are in place to mitigate liquidity risk which is faced by the Company.

i. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that funds available are adequate to meet claim
payments to its policyholders and to ensure operational expenses are paid when they are due.

Continue...
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ii. Main sources of the Company’s funding are capital and gross written premium. The Company also maintains a
portfolio of readily marketable securities to strengthen its liquidity position. Investment durations are diversified,
depending on the cash flow needs of the Company and maturity periods are regularly reviewed. Cash flow
analysis is done prior to investments are made.

iii. The Company's treaty agreements with reinsurers contain clauses permitting the immediate draw down of funds
to meet claim payments should claim events exceed a certain agreed size.

iv. Availability of a stand-by overdraft facility to be used only in the event of an emergency.

v. Determining the maturity profiles of insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance assets based on the estimated
timing of net cash outflows from recognised insurance liabilities.

vi. Planning for all large cash outflows in advance and making necessary arrangements to ensure the availability
of funds to meet such outflows.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The Company monitors the liquidity position of the Company to asses funding requirements. Liquid assets include
cash and short term investments and bills purchased. The Company also monitors maturity profile of its assets and
liabilities.

Maturity profiles

The following table summarises the maturity profile of the financial assets, financial liabilities and insurance contract
liabilities. Unearned premiums have been excluded from the analysis as they are not contractual obligations. The
Company maintains a portfolio of highly marketable and diverse assets that can be easily liquidated in the event
of an unforeseeable interruption of cash flow. The Company also has committed lines of credit that it can access
to meet liquidity needs.

Contractual maturities of undiscounted cash flows of financial assets and financial liabilities are provided below.

As at 32 Ashad 2075As at 32 Ashad 2075

Financial assets/liabilities 0-6 7-12 1-2| Over 2 | No Stated Total
Months| Months | Years| Years Maturity
Financial assets
Fair value through profit or loss - - - - - -
Listed equity securities - - - - - -
Fair value through other comprehensive income - - - - - -
Amortized cost (please specify separately) - - - - - -
Fixed deposit - - - - - -
Government bond - - - - - -
Reinsurance receivables - - - - - -
Other Financial Assets 6,966,062 - - - - 6,966,062
Cash and short term deposits 701,410,461 - - - -| 701,410,461
Total 708,376,523 - - - -| 708,376,523
Financial liabilities
Reinsurance payable 111,865 - - - - 111,865
Other financial liabilites (Sundry Creditors) 1,403,439 - - - - 1,403,439
Total 1,515,304 - - - - 1,515,304
Continue...
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Financial assets/liabilities

0-6
Months

7-12
Months

1-2
Years

Over 2
Years

No Stated
Maturity

Total

Financial assets

Fair value through profit or loss

Listed equity securities

Fair value through other comprehensive income
Amortized cost (please specify separately)
Fixed deposit

Government bond

Reinsurance receivables

Other Financial Assets

Cash and short term deposits

Total

Financial liabilities

Reinsurance payable

Other financial liabilites (Sundry Creditors)

839,367
108,334
947,701

839,367
108,334
947,701

Total

As at 31 Ashad 2073

Financial assets/liabilities

0-6
Months

7-12
Months

1-2
Years

Over 2
Years

No Stated
Maturity

Total

Financial assets

Fair value through profit or loss

Listed equity securities

Fair value through other comprehensive incd
Amortized cost (please specify separately)
Fixed deposit

Government bond

Reinsurance receivables

Other Financial Assets

Cash and short term deposits

Total

Financial liabilities

Reinsurance payable

Other financial liabilites (Sundry Creditors)

me

89,367
593,678
683,045

89,367
593,678
683,045

Total

Continue...
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® Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes
in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. Market risk is an aggregation
of,

a) Interest rate risk

b) Currency risk

c) Equity price risk

a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes
in market interest rates. Floating rate instruments typically expose the Company to cash flow interest risk, whereas
fixed interest rate instruments expose the Company to fair value interest rate risk.

Management of interest rate risk

In order to mitigate the interest rate risk faced by the Company, the management follows the guidelines set out in
the investment policy which is regularly reviewed by the Investment Committee. Among such guidelines, following
guidlines included to mitigate the interest rate risk faced by the Company.

i. Preferred investment horizon for the investment portfolio is limited to a maximum of ten years from the time of
investment.

i. Forecasting and monitoring future cash inflows and outflows when formulating investment strategies.

iii. Relative amounts of the each portfolio will be determined by the Company's liquidity position, availability of market
values, individual secuities' risk/return profiles.

However, Company does not have any variable rate interest bearing financial assets and financial liabilities as at
the reporting date. Therefore, the Company is exposed only to fair value interest rate risk during the period.

Sensitivity analysis - Interest rate risk

Sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk reflects the changes in the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument at the reporting date in response to assumed movements in market interest rates. The sensitivity of
reported fair value of financial instruments is monitored by assessing the projected changes in the fair value of
financial instruments held by the portfolios in response to assumed parallel shift in the yield curve by +/- 100 basis
points and +/- 200 basis points.

32 Ashad 2075 31 Ashad 2074 31 Ashad 2073

Change in variables Impact Impact Impact Impact Impact Impact

on PBT*| on Equity on PBT*| on Equity on PBT* on Equity

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

+ 100 basis points - - - - - -

- 100 basis points - - - - - -

+ 200 basis points - - - - - -

- 200 basis points - - - - - -
PBT* - Profit before tax

Continue...
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b) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to the changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Company's principal transactions are carried out in Nepalese Rupees (Rs.) and hence, its exposure to
foreign exchange risk arises primarily with respect to reinsurance recoveries and US Dollars denominated assets
developed out of aforementioned recoveries.

Management of currency risk
The currency risk faced by the Company is minimal since no material liabilities or assets were recorded on foreign
currency denominated as at the reporting date.

Sensitivity analysis - Currency risk

The tables below indicate the currencies to which the Company had significant exposures as at 32 Ashad 2075 and
the effect to the gains/(losses) in case of a market exchange rates up/drop by 1%. The analysis below calculates
the effect of a reasonably possible movement of the currency rate against the Nepalese Rupee, with all other variables
held constant, on the statement of profit or loss and the equity.

32 Ashad 2075

31 Ashad 2074 31 Ashad 2073

Change in variables Impact Impact Impact Impact Impact Impact
on PBT*| on Equity on PBT*| on Equity on PBT* on Equity
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

5 % strengthening of Rupee
5 % weakening of Rupee

c) Equity price risk

The risk of fluctuation in fair values or future cash flows of a financial instrument due to a change in market prices,
other than those occurring due to interest rate risk or currency risk, is referred to as equity price risk. Accordingly,
the equity price risk affects the Company's investments in equity instruments.

Management of equity price risk

In order to mitigate the equity price risk faced by the Company, the management follows the guidelines set out in
the investment policy. The Company's investment policy guides the management to set/monitor objectives and
constraints on investments, diversification plans as well as limits on equity exposure. Compliance with the policy is
monitored and the exposure and instances of non-compliance are reported to the Board of Directors. The policy is
reviewed regularly for pertinence and for changes in the risk environment. The Company manages its equity price
risk by investing in relatively less volatile sectors and in different sectors.

Sensitivity analysis - Equity price risk

Sensitivity analysis for equity risk reflects how changes in the fair value of equity securities at the reporting date will
fluctuate in response to assumed changes in equity market prices. The movements in the fair value of equity securities
monitored by assessing the projected changes in the fair value of equity securities held by the portfolios in response
to assumed equity price movements of +/- 10% and +/- 20%.

32 Ashad 2075 31 Ashad 2074 31 Ashad 2073
Change in variables Impact Impact Impact Impact Impact Impact
on PBT*|on Equity| on PBT* jon Equity| on PBT*|on Equity
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
10% increase in equity market prices - - - - - -
10% decrease in equity market prices - - - - - -
20% increase in equity market prices - - - - - -
20% decrease in equity market prices - - - - - -
Continue...
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(ii) Insurance risks
The Company principally issues the following types of general insurance contracts : Motor, Fire, Engineering, Marine,
Healthcare and Miscellaneous. Risks under non-life insurance policies usually cover twelve months duration.

For general insurance contracts, the most significant risks arise from natural disasters, climate changes and terrorist
activities. For longer tail claims that take some years to settle, there is also inflation risk.

The above risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts and geographical
areas. This is largely achieved through diversification across industry sectors and geography. Furthemore, strict claim
review policies to assess all new and ongoing cliams, regular detailed review of claims handling procedures and
frequent investigation of possible fraudulent claims are established to reduce the risk exposure of the Company. The
Company further enforces a policy of actively managing an promptly pursuing claims, in order to reduce its exposure
to unpredictable future developments that can negatively impact the business. inflation risk is mitigated by taking
expected inflation in to account when estimating insurance contract liabilities. The Company identifies and categorises
risks in terms of their source, their impact on the Company and preferred strategies for dealing with them.

The Company has also limited its exposure by imposing maximum claim amounts on certain contracts as well as
the use of reinsurance arrangements in order to limit exposure to catastrophic events (e.g. flood damage).

The Company considers insurance risk to be a combination of the following components.

- Product design risk
- Underwriting risk

- Reinsurance risk

- Claims risk

Operational risk Mitigation strategies

Product design risk

The Company issues non-life insurance contracts such| Diversification of insurance contracts across a large
as motor, fire and engineering, marine and miscellaneous. | geographical areas.

Product designs of the portfolio may be outdated due to
changes in the climate leading to natural disasters,
behavioral trends of people due to changing life styles
and steady escalation of costs in respect of spare parts
in the industry.

Variability of risk is improved by careful selection and
implementation of underwriting strategies, which are
designed to ensure that risks are diversified in terms of
type of risk.

Strategies are periodically reviewed and suitable action
taken.

Constant watch on internal and external factors that may
impede planned objectives.

Underwriting risk
Underwriting risk generally refers to the risk of loss on | Improve knowledge and skills of the underwriting staff.
underwriting activity in the insurance. In insurance,
underwriting risk may either arise from an inaccurate
assessment of the risks entailed in writing an insurance
policy, or from factors wholly out of the underwriter's | Review profitability, pricing, terms and conditions of various
control. products.

Statistical databases are maintained on loss making clients
to ensure such clients are strategically declined.

Financial authority limits are in place for underwriting
clearly prescribing the limits to underwrite based on the
sum assured and risk.

Continue...
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Reinsurance risk

Reinsurance risk refers to the inability of the ceding
company or the primary insurer to obtain insurance from
a reinsurer at the right time and at an appropriate cost.

Global trusted and stable portfolio of reinsurance
companies which are rated highly used for reinsurance
placements.

Very close and professional relationship is maintained
with all reinsurers.

Provisions are made for long outstanding reinsurance
receivables.

Outstanding reinsurance receivables are reviewed on a
monthly basis to ensure that all dues are collected or
set-off against payables on time.

Claims risk
The risk of actual claims or the timing thereof, may differ
from expectations.

Claim intimation is done through the call centre which
works on 24x7 basis.

Customers are advised of consequence of inadequate
sum insured and excesses.

Cross check information from various issues and
segregation of approval and payment duties.

Qualified independent actuary carries out independent
valuation on a quarterly basis in order to assess adequacy
of reserves.

Significant outstanding claims are subjected to periodic
reviews by the management and the Board of Directors.

37 Events After the Reporting Date

37.1 Dividends
Company being in first year of operation, no dividend has been proposed or declared.

There have been no events subsequent to the reporting date, which would have any material effect on the
Company, other than disclosed above.

38 Capital Commitments and Contingencies

38.1 Capital Commitments
The Company has no Capital Commitments.

38.2 Contingencies
In the opinion of the Directors and the Company’s lawyers, there is no such pending litigation against which the
Company will have a material impact on the reported financial results or future operations of the Company.

All pending litigation for claims have been evaluated and adequate provisions have been made in the financial
statements.

56

: First Annual Report



Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

iferdr s e DUl fod.

Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended 32 Ashad 2075

Operational Risks

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from system failure, human error, fraud or external events. When controls fail to
perform, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications or can lead to financial
loss. The Company cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but by intiating a rigorous control framework and by
monitoring and responding to potential risks, the Company is able to manage the risks. Controls include effective segregation
of duties, access controls, authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment processess, including
the use of internal audit. Business risks such as changes in environment, technology and the industry are monitered through

the Company's strategic planning and budgeting process.

Net change in Operational Assets and Liabilities

FY 2074-75
Rs.

FY 2073-74
Rs.

FY 2072-73
Rs.

Net change in reinsurance receivables

Net change in receivables and other assets
Net change in insurance liabilities

Net change in other liabilities
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39 Employee Benefits:

The Nepal Accounting Standard 19 on “Employee Benefits” issued by the Institute of chartered Accountants of Nepal
has been adopted by the Company as under:

Defined Benefit plans in respect of Leave Encashment will be as per actuarial valuation. Being Company in first year
of operation and no leave encashment benefit obligation, acturial valuation is not done in case of Leave Enchasment.

Brieft calculation pattern of Acturial Valuation Working as disclosed hereunder:

S.N.| Particulars 2074-75 2073-74 2072-73
Leave Leave Leave

Encashment | Encashment Gratuity | Encashment| Gratuity

(Non (Non (Non (Non (Non

Funded) Funded) | Funded) Funded)| Funded)

1 | Expenses Recognized In Income Statement
Interest Cost - - - - -
Current Service Cost - - - - -
Expected Return on Plan Assets - - - - -
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss - - - - -
Past Service Cost - - - - -
Expenses recognized in the Profit & Loss A/c - - - - -
2 | Change in Present Value Obligations
PV of Obligation at beginning of the year - - - - -
Interest Cost - - - - -
Current Service Cost - - - - -
Benefit paid - - - - -
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss - - - - -
Liability at the end of the year - - - - -
3 | Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets
Fair Value of Plan Asset at Beginning of the Year - - - - -
Expected Return on Plan Assets - - - - -
Contribution by Employer - - - - -
Benefit paid - - - - -
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss on Plan Assets - - - - -
Fair Value of Plan Asset at End of the Year - - - - R
4 | Amount Recognized in Statement of Financial Position
Present Value of Obligations at Year End - - - - -
Fair Value of Plan Assets at Year End - - -
Funded Status - - - - -
Unrecognised Acturial (Gain)/Loss at Year End - - - - -
Unrecognised Past Service Cost - - - - -
Net Asset/(Liability) Recognised in Balance Sheet - - - - R
5 | Actuarial Assumptions
Discount rate - - - - -
Salary escalation rate - - - - -
Retirement age - - - - -
Remining Working Life - - - - -
Mortality - - - - -
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40 Reinsurance Asset

Reinsurance Asset is recognised from the portion of reinsurance amount paid to Reinusurer. Premium is collected in
cash basis and not accrued during the year portion is parked in Reinsurance Asset.

FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74 FY 2072-73

Rs Rs Rs

Reinsurance Asset 140,884 - -

40.1 Reinsurance Ceeded Premium

FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74 FY 2072-73

Rs Rs Rs

Opening Balance - - -
Gross Reinsurance Ceeded 143,021 - -
Reinsurance Ceeded Recognised During the year (2,137) - -
Closing Balance 140,884 - -
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Insurance

1.1 General

Sanima Insurance Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as “SICL”) is a public limited company, established on
2064.03.07 from company registrar office, Kathmandu. The company obtained the license (18/074/075) from Beema
Samiti on 2074.10.24 and finally got approval from Beema Samiti to carry on business from 2075.03.14 and company
finally started its commercial operation from 2075.03.27.

1.2 Financial Statements

The Financial Statement of the SICL for the year ended 32 Ashad 2075 comprises Statement of Financial Position,
Statementof Profit or Loss, Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement
of Cash Flows, Notes to the Financial Statements, Significant Accounting Policies of the Company and Statement of
Financial Position and reconciliations.

1.3 Principal Activities and Operations

Insurance
The principal activities of the companyis to issue Non - Life Insurance contract to the general public.

Basis of Preparation and Other Significant Accounting Policies
2.1. Basis of Preparation

2.1.1. Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statement of SICL which comprises components mentioned above have been prepared in accordance
with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards comprising of Nepal Financial Reporting Standards and Nepal Accounting
Standards (hereafter referred as NFRS), laid down by thelnstitute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal and in compliance
with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2006.

For all periods up to 32 Ashad 2075 the SICL prepared the financial statements in accordance with the Nepal Accounting
Standards which were effective till that period. These financial statements for the year ended 32 Ashad 2075 are the
first set of statements that SICL has prepared in accordance with NFRSs.

2.1.2. Responsibility for Financial Statements
The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of Financial Statements of SICL as per the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2006.

2.1.3. Approval of Financial Statements by Directors
The accompanied Financial Statements have been authorized by the Board of Directors vide its resolution dated
2075.09.02 and recommended for its approval by the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders.

2.1.4. Basis of Measurement
The Financial Statements of Insurance have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the following material
items in the Statement of Financial Position:

e Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (quoted) are measured at fair value.
® |nsurance contract liabilities are determined in accordance with internationally accepted actuarial principles.

2.1.5. Functional and Presentation Currency

The Financial Statements of SICL are presented in Nepalese Rupees (Rs), which is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Insurance operates. Financial information presented in Nepalese Rupees. There was no
change in SICL’s presentation and functional currency during the year under review.

2.1.6. Presentation of Financial Statements
The assets and liabilities of SICL presented in the Statement of Financial Position are grouped in an order of liquidity.
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2.1.7. Materiality and Aggregation

In compliance with Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 01 (Presentation of Financial Statements), each material class
of similar items is presented separately in the Financial Statements. Items of dissimilar nature or functions too are
presented separately unless they are immaterial. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the Statement of Financial Position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously.
Income and expenses are not offset in the Statement of Profit or Loss unless required or permitted by an Accounting
Standard.

2.1.8. Comparative Information

The accounting policies have been consistently applied by Insurance with those of the previous financial year in
accordance with NAS 01 Presentation of Financial Statements, except those which had to be changed as a result of
application of the new NFRS. Further, comparative information is reclassified wherever necessary to comply with the
current NFRS presentation.

2.2. Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with Nepal Accounting Standards requires the management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

The most significant areas of estimation,uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have
most significant effect in the Financial Statements are as follows:

2.2.1 Going Concern

The Directors have made an assessment of Insurance’s ability to continue as a going concern and satisfied that it has
the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, Board is not aware of any material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon Insurance’s ability to continue as a going concern and they do not
intend either to liquidate or to cease operations of it. Therefore, the Financial Statements continue to be prepared on
the going concern basis.

2.2.2 Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial position can be
derived from active markets, they are derived from observable market data. However, if this is not available, judgment
is required to establish fair values.

2.2.3 Assessment of impairment

The Company assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for an asset or a cash-generating unit at each
reporting date or more frequently, if events or changes in circumstances necessitate to do so. This requires the estimation
of the ‘value in use’ of such individual assets or the cash-generating units. Estimating value in use requires management
to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the asset or the cash-generating unit and also to select a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of the relevant cash flows. This valuation requires the
Company to make estimates about expected future cash flows and discount rates; hence, they are subject to uncertainty.

2.2.4 Provisions for liabilities and contingencies

The Company receives legal claims against it in the normal course of business. Management has made judgments
as to the likelihood of any claim succeeding in making provisions. The time of concluding legal claims is uncertain, as
is the amount of possible outflow of economic benefits. Timing and cost ultimately depend on the due process in
respective legal jurisdictions.

2.2.5 Foreign currency translation

The Company’s financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees which is also the Company’s functional currency.
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate prevailing at the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the functional currency
rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. All differences are taken to the statement of profit or loss.
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Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rate as at the date of the initial transaction and are not subsequently restated. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

2.2.6 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating units (CGU) fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs
to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted
share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the
asset’'s or CGU'’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed, only if there has been a
change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount,
nor exceeds the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of income.

2.2.7 Amortised cost measurement

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition,
minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any
difference between the initial amount recognised and the maturity amount, minus any reduction for impairment

2.2.8 Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are impaired.

A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that have occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an ‘incurred
loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

¢ Impairment of financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on assets carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount
of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the loss is recorded
in the statement of income.

The Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If it is
determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, the asset is included in a group of financial assets with similar risk characteristics and that group of
financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for
which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.
The impairment assessment is performed at each reporting date.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and that decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed. Any
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the statement of income, to the extent that the carrying
value of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.
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¢ Impairment of financial assets at fair value through OCI

If a fair value through OCI financial asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference between its costs (net of
any principal repayment and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income, is transferred from equity to the statement of profit or loss. Reversals in respect of
equity instruments classified as fair value through OCI are not recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Reversals of impairment losses on debt instruments classified at fair value through OCI are reversed through the
statement of profit or loss, if the increase in the fair value of the instruments can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment losses were recognised in the statement of income.

¢ Impairment of financial assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not
carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked to and
must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses shall not be reversed.

2.2.9 Provisions

General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Where the Company expects some or all of a
provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement
is virtually certain. Expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of income net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounting using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time isrecognised as a finance cost.

2.2.10 Capital commitments and contingencies

All discernible risks are accounted for in determining the amount of all known liabilities. Contingent liabilities are possible
obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by uncertain future events or present obligations where the transfer
of economic benefit is not probable or cannot be reliably measured. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the
statement of financial position but are disclosed unless they are remote.

2.2.11 Events occurring after the reporting date
Events after the reporting period are those events, favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the reporting date
and the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

All material post reporting date events have been considered and where appropriate, adjustments or disclosures have
been made in the respective notes to the financial statements.

2.2.12 Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective
assets. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest
and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

2.2.13 Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception date and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent
on the use of a specific asset (or assets) and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset (or assets), even if that
asset is (or those assets are) not explicitly specified in an arrangement.
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Insurance company as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. Leases that do not transfer
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset to the Insurance company are classified as operating
leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit or loss on a straight line basis over
the lease term.

Insurance company as a lessor
Leases in which the Insurance company does not transfer substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of
an asset are classified as operating leases.

Rental income is recognised as revenue in the statement of profit or loss on a straight line basis over the lease term.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same bases as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised
as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

2.2.14 Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant & equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any.

Cost is inclusive of inward freight, duties and taxes and incidental expenses related to acquisition. In respect of major
projects involving construction, related pre-operational expenses form part of the value of assets capitalised. Expenses
capitalised also include applicable borrowing costs for qualifying assets, if any. All upgradation / enhancements are
charged off as revenue expenditure unless they bring similar significant additional benefits.

Cost model
Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation less accumulated impairment losses.

Revaluation model
The Insurance Company has not applied the revaluation model to the any class of freehold land and buildings or other
assets. Such properties are carried at a previously recognized GAAP Amount.

Depreciation

Depreciation of these assets commences when the assets are ready for their intended use which is generally on
commissioning and not when it starts to be used. ltems of Property, Plant and Equipment are depreciated in a manner
that amortises the cost (or other amount substituted for cost) of the assets after commissioning, less its residual value,
over their useful lives on a straight line basis. Land is not depreciated.

Estimated useful lives
The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment of the Company are as follows:

Buildings 50 Years
Plant and Equipment 5 Years

Furniture and Fixtures 3-5 Years
Vehicles 5-8 Years
Office Equipment 3-5 Years
Computers 3-5 Years

Property, plant and equipment’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each Statement of Financial Position
date and changes, if any, are treated as changes in accounting estimate.

Capital Work in Progress

These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the construction of buildings, major plant and machinery and
system development, awaiting capitalization. Capital work-in-progress would be transferred to the relevant asset when
it is available for use, i.e. when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
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2.2.15 Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets that the Company controls and from which it expects future economic benefits are capitalised upon
acquisition and initially measured at cost comprising the purchase price (including import duties and non-refundable
taxes) and directly attributable costs to prepare the asset for its intended use.

Software is amortized over a period of five years.

2.2.16 Cash and Short Term Deposits
Cash and short-term deposits in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with a maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

The insurance company holds NPR. 1,596 cash and NPR. 8,867,718 as bank balance as on 32"Ashad 2075.
2.2.17 Retirement Benefits Obligations

A. Defined Contribution Plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an Insurance pays fixed contribution into a
separate Institution (or own fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the
fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee services in the current and prior
periods, as defined in Nepal Accounting Standards — NAS 19 (Employee Benefits).

The contribution payable by the employer to a defined contribution plan in proportion to the services rendered to
Insurance by the employees and is recorded as an expense under ‘Other operating and administrative expenses’ as
and when they become due. Unpaid contributions are recorded as a liability under ‘Other liabilities’.

B. Defined Benefit Plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. Accordingly, staff gratuity
and leave encashment has been considered as defined benefit plans as per Nepal Accounting Standards — NAS 19
(Employee Benefits).

a. Gratuity
The gratuity has been provided on the basis of provision as per Labour Act 2074.NAS 19 requires actuarial valuations
for Gratuity. No actuarial valuations has been carried out. So, the GAAP figure has been taken as a basis for Gratuity.

b. Unutilized Accumulated Leave
NAS 19 requires actuarial valuations for Leave encashment. No actuarial valuations has been carried out.

2.2.18 Income Tax

As per Nepal Accounting Standard- NAS 12 (Income Taxes) tax expense is the aggregate amount included in determination
of profit or loss for the period in respect of current and deferred taxation. Income Tax expense is recognized in the
statement of Profit or Loss, except to the extent it relates to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive
income in which case it is recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income.

a. Current Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities consist of amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to Inland Revenue Department
in respect of the current year, using the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted on the reporting date
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior years.

Income Tax liabilities of amounts NPR. 9,613,966 and Income tax assets of NPR. 10,681,768.00 exist as on 32"Ashad
2075.

b. Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and the
amounts used for taxation purposes (tax base), at the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for the future tax consequences to the extent it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilized.
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Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax liabilities of NPR196,936 and Deferred tax assets of NPR 55,766 exists as on 32"Ashad 2075.

2.2.19 Standards issued but not yet effective

Standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the financial statements are set out below. The
Insurance and will adopt these standards when they become effective. Pending a detailed review the financial impact
is not reasonably estimable as at the date of publication of these financial statements.

(i) NFRS 9- Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement
NFRS 9, as issued reflects the first phase of work on replacement of NAS 39 and applies to classification and
measurement of financial assets and liabilities.

Since NFRS 9 consists of mixed sets of standards from IAS 39 and IFRS 9, this standard has been brought to the
attention on issuing body and Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal. This is under review and will be effective
after this has been resolved.

2.2.20 First Time Adoption of NFRS

These are the Insurance’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with NFRS. The accounting policies set
out in Point 2 have been applied in preparing the Financial Statements for the year ended 16th July 2018, the comparative
information presented for the year ended 15th July 2017 and in the preparation of an opening NFRS based Statement
of Financial Position at 15th July 2016 (the date of transition).

2.2.21 Reco of Profit and loss as per previous GAAP with Total Comprehensive income as per NFRS

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
2017 2018
Profit/Loss as per GAAP (1,369,467) 22,933,459
Adjustments due to NFRS adjustments
1. Unearned Premium - (270,086)
2. Premium ceded to reinsurers (un-accrued) - 140,884
3. Reversal of change in insurance contract liabilities - 65,541
4. Increase in Deferred tax due to NFRS implementation - 13,501
5. Unearned reinsurance commission income - (37,636)
Total Adjustment - (87,796)
Total Comprehensive income as per NFRS (1,369,467) 22,845,663
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GPO Box: 10228, 36, Shankerdev Marg

Putali Sadak, Kathmandu, Nepal

:’ Q. .L:-‘ an d Com pany Tel: 4269234, 4232006, 4240635, Fax: 977-1-4228850
=== E-mail: jbrh@info.com.np

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE

SHAREHOLDER'’S OF SANIMA INSURANCE Co. LTD.

We have audited the accompanying Balance Sheet of the M/S Sanima Insurance Co.
Ltd., Kathmandu, Nepal as at Ashad 31, 2065 (15 July 2008) and the related Statement of
Income and Cash Flow statement for the year. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on our audit. '

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standard on Auditing or relevant
practices. Those Standards or relevant practices require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatements. An audit includes examining on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amount and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that out audit provides
a reasonable basis for our opinion. We express our opinion that:

a. We have obtained prompt replies to our queries and explanations asked for.

b. The financial statements are in agreement with the books of accounts
maintained by the Company.

c. The accounts and records of the company have been accurately maintained in
accordance with the law.

d. To the best our information and according to the explanations given to us,
neither the Board of directors nor any employee of the company have acted
contrary to legal provisions relating to accounts nor committed any
misappropriation causing loss or damage to the corfpany.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the company as of Ashad 31,2065 (15 July 2008), and of the results of its operation and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Accounting Standards or
relevant practices and comply with Company Act 2063,

1
& B
Jagdish Agrawal, FCA
Partner,
JBRH and Company
d A i

Date: 2065.8.10
Place: Kathmandu

Branch Office: Durga Market, Main Road, Biratnagar, Nepal. Tel: 021-527795, E-mail: jbrhbrt@wlink.com.np
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Balance-Sheet
As at Ashadh 31, 2065 (July 15, 2008)

Schedules 2064-65

NRs.
Equity
Equity Holders' Fund
Share Capital 1 1,000,000.00
Retained Earnings (174,887.00)
Total Equity 825,113.00
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and Bank Balances 2 958,007.00
Sundry Debtor & Advance 3 10,900.00
Total Current Assets (A) 968,907.00
less: Current Liabilities & Provision
Sundry Creditors and Payable 4 143,794.00
Total Current Liabilities (B) 143,794.00
Net Current Assets (A-B) 825,113.00
Total Assets 825,113.00
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 7 As Per Our Report of Even Date
Moti Lal Dugar Arun Kumar Ojha Sampa Lama Jagdish Agrawal, FCA
Chairman Director Director Partner

JBRH & Company
Chartered Accountants

Date: 2065-08-10
Place: Kathmandu
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Income Statement
For the year ended on Ashadh 31, 2065 (July 15, 2008)

Schedules 2064-65
NRs.

Income
Income -
Total Income -
Administrative expenses 5 (79,887.00)
Company Registration Expenses 6 (95,000.00)
Net Profit/( loss) before tax (174,887.00)
Provision for Income Tax -
Net Profit/( loss) After Tax (174,887.00)
Profit/(Loss) brought forward from last year -
Net Profit/ (Loss) transferred to Balance Sheet (174,887.00)
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 7 As Per Our Report of Even Date

Moti Lal Dugar Arun Kumar Ojha Sampa Lama Jagdish Agrawal, FCA
Chairman Director Director Partner

JBRH & Company
Chartered Accountants

Date: 2065-08-10
Place: Kathmandu
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Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended Ashadh 31, 2065 (July 15, 2008)

Cash flow from operating activities

Net Profit Before Taxation

Adjustment for:

Depreciation

Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital
Cash flow from changes in working capital
Increase/(Decrease) in current liabilities
(Increase)/Decrease in current assets

Cash Flow from operating activities

Cash flow on investing activities

Investment in shares

Purchase/Capitalisation of fixed assets

Cash flow on investing activities

Cash flow on financing activities

From issue of share capital

Cash flow on financing activities

Total cash generated in the year

Opening cash and bank balances

Cash and bank balance at the end of the year

2064-65
NRs.

(174,887.00)

(174,887.00)

143,794.00
(10,900.00)
(41,993.00)

1,000,000.00
1,000,000.00
958,007.00

958,007.00

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 7

As Per Our Report Of Even Date

Moti Lal Dugar
Chairman

Arun Kumar Ojha
Director

Sampa Lama
Director

Date: 2065-08-10
Place: Kathmandu

Jagdish Agrawal, FCA

Partner

JBRH & Company
Chartered Accountants
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Statement of Change in Equity
As at Ashadh 31, 2065 (July 15, 2008)

(Amount in NRs.)
Particulars Share Capital| Reserve and Total
Surplus

Opening balance
Addition during the year
Closing Balance

1,000,000.00
1,000,000.00

(174,887.00)
(174,887.00)

825,113.00
825,113.00

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 7

As Per Our Report of Even Date

Moti Lal Dugar Arun Kumar Ojha

Chairman

Date: 2065-08-10
Place: Kathmandu

Director

Sampa Lama
Director

Jagdish Agrawal, FCA

Partner

JBRH & Company
Chartered Accountants
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Schedule Annexed to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

As At Ashadh 31, 2065
Schedule 1: Share Capital

2064-65
NRs.
Authorized Capital
20,00,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each 200,000,000.00
Issued Capital
12,50,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each 125,000,000.00
Paid up Capital
10,00,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each and Rs. 1 paid for each 1,000,000.00
Total 1,000,000.00
Schedule 2: Cash and Bank
2064-65
NRs.
Cash at Bank 768,007.00
Cash in Hand 190,000.00
Total 958,007.00
Schedule 3: Sundry Debtors & Advances
2064-65
NRs.
Business Advance to Staff 10,300.00
Prepaid Tax 600.00
Total Current Assets 10,900.00
Schedule 4: Sundry Creditors & Payable
2064-65
NRs.
Audit Fee Payable 5,575.00
Payable to Staff 900.00
House Rent Payable 1,700.00
Sanima Pvt. Ltd. 135,544.00
Tax Deducted at Source 75.00
Total 143,794.00
Schedule 5: Administrative Expenses
2064-65
| NRs.
Salary 18,000.00
Stationery & Printing 3,210.00
Office Rent 2,000.00
Communication Expenses 22.00
Transportation Expenses 1,005.00
Audit Fee 5,650.00
License Register Expenses 50,000.00
Total 79,887.00
Schedule 6: Registration Expenses
2064-65
| NRs.
Company Registration Expenses 95,000.00
95,000.00
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Schedule - 7: Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts

1. Introduction
Sanima Insurance Company Ltd. has been registered as public limited company for operating general insurance
business. The company has not yet obtained the certificate of operation and is still in process for obtaining license from
Beema Samiti.

2. Accounting Policies

A. Accounting Convention
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance certain relevant Nepal
Accounting Standards and requirements of Nepal Company Act, 2063 and Income Tax Act, 2058.

B. Income
Since the company is in pre-operational phase, no income is generated during the year.

C. Deferred Tax Assets
The company has incurred loss for Rs. 174,887 during the year due to which the deferred tas assets of Rs. 55,089
@ 31.5% tax rate is raised. But we have not adjusted the same in books as the company has not started its core
business and the license is also not issued by the regulatory body yet.

As per NAS 09, deferred tax assets shall be recognized only to the extent that there is future possibility of profit
against which the same can be adjusted, but in this case since regulatory requirement are still in process, we have
not shown the same in books.

3. Notes to the Accounts
No Previous year’s Figures are mentioned as this is the first year after registration.
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1DDL) 157/10 Janapath Marg

=yt Anamnagar, Kathmandu, Nepal
= R R and CO. Tel: 4770187, 4770290, 4770796
Chartered Accountants E-mail: jbrh@info.com.np

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDER’S OF SANIMA INSURANCE CO. LTD.

We have audited the accompanying Balance Sheet of the M/S Sanima Insurance Co. Ltd,,
Kathmandu, Nepal as at Ashad 31, 2066 (15 July 2009) and the related Statement of
Income and Cash Flow statement for the year. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standard on Auditing or relevant
practices. Those Standards or relevant practices require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatements. An audit includes examining on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amount and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that out audit provides
a reasonable basis for our opinion. We express our opinion that:

a. We have obtained prompt replies to our queries and explanations asked for.

b. The financial statements are in agreement with the books of accounts
maintained by the Company.

G. The accounts and records of the company have been accurately maintained in
accordance with the law.

d. To the best our information and according to thg explanations given to us,
neither the Board of directors nor any employee of the company have acted
contrary to legal provisions relating to accounts nor committed any
misappropriation causing loss or damage to the company.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the company as of Ashad 31,2066 (15 July 2009), and of the results of its operation and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Accounting Standards or
relevant practices and comply with Company Act 2063.

"
@ o
Jagdish Agrawal, FCA
Partner,
JBRH and Co.
Chartered Accountants

Date: 2066.8.01
Place; Kathmandu

- Branch Office: Durga Market, Main Road, Biratnagar, Nepal. Tel: 021-527795, E-mail: jbrhbrt@wlink.com.np
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Balance-Sheet
As at Ashadh 31, 2066 (July 15, 2009)

(Amount in NRs.)
Schedules As At As At
31.03.2066 31.03.2065
Equity
Equity Holders' Fund
Share Capital 1 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00
Retained Earnings (286,174.36) (174,887.00)
Total Equity 713,825.64 825,113.00
Assets
Non Current Assets
Fixed Assets 2 51,790.00 -
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (12,947.50) -
Net Fixed Assets 38,842.50 -
Current Assets
Cash and Bank Balances 3 726,066.67 958,007.00
Loan Advance and deposits 4 120,947.47 10,900.00
Total Current Assets (A) 847,014.14 968,907.00
less: Current Liabilities & Provision
Sundry Creditors and Payable 5 170,518.50 143,719.00
TDS Payable 1,512.50 75.00
Total Current Liabilities (B) 172,031.00 143,794.00
Net Current Assets (A-B) 674,983.14 825,113.00
Total Assets 713,825.64 825,113.00

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 8

As Per Our Report of Even Date

Moti Lal Dugar
Chairman

Arun Kumar Ojha
Director

Date: 2066-08-01
Place: Kathmandu

Sampa Lama
Director

Jagdish Agrawal, FCA

Partner

JBRH & Company
Chartered Accountants
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Income Statement
For the year ended on Ashadh 31, 2066 (July 15, 2009)

Income
Income
Total Income

Administrative expenses
Company Registration Expenses
Depreciation Charge

Sub Total

Net Profit/( loss) before tax

Provision for Income Tax

Net Profit/( loss) After Tax

Profit/(Loss) brought forward from last year

Net Profit/ (Loss) transferred to Balance Sheet

(Amount in NRs.)

Schedules Current Year | Previous Year

2065-066 2064-065

37,323.14 -

37,323.14 -

6 (135,663.00) (79,887.00)

7 - (95,000.00)
2 (12,947.50)

(148,610.50) (174,887.00)

(111,287.36) (174,887.00)

(111,287.36) (174,887.00)

(174,887.00) -

(286,174.36) (174,887.00)

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 8

As Per Our Report of Even Date

Moti Lal Dugar
Chairman

Arun Kumar Ojha
Director

Date: 2066-08-01
Place: Kathmandu

Sampa Lama

Director

Jagdish Agrawal, FCA

Partner

JBRH & Company
Chartered Accountants
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Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended Ashadh 31, 2066 (July 15, 2009)

Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Cash flow from operating activities
Net Profit Before Taxation
Adjustment for:

Depreciation

Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital

Cash flow from changes in working capital
(Increase)/Decrease in current assets
Increase/(Decrease) in current liabilities
Cash Flow from operating activities

Cash flow on investing activities
Investment in shares
Purchase/Capitalisation of fixed assets
Cash flow on investing activities

Cash flow on financing activities

From issue of share capital

Cash flow on financing activities

Total cash generated in the year

Opening cash and bank balances

Cash and bank balance at the end of the year

(Amount in NRs.)

Current Year | Previous Year
2065-066 2064-065
(111,287.36) (174,887.00)
12,947.50 -
(98,339.86) (174,887.00)
(110,047.47) (10,900.00)
28,237.00 143,794.00
(180,150.33) (41,993.00)
(51,790.00) -
(51,790.00) -
- 1,000,000.00

- 1,000,000.00
(231,940.33) 958,007.00
958,007.00 -
726,066.67 958,007.00

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 8

As Per Our Report of Even Date

Arun Kumar Ojha
Director

Moti Lal Dugar
Chairman

Date: 2066-08-01
Place: Kathmandu

Sampa Lama
Director

Jagdish Agrawal, FCA
Partner
JBRH & Company
Chartered Accountants
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Statement of Change in Equity
As at Ashadh 31, 2066 (July 15, 2009)

(Amount in NRs.)

Particulars Share Capital Retained Total
Earning

Balance as at 32 Ashad 2064 - - -
Adjustment During the year
Issue of Share Capital 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00
Net Loss (174,887.00)| (174,887.00)
Balance as at 31 Ashad 2065 1,000,000.00| (174,887.00) 825,113.00
Adjustment During the year
Issue of Share Capital - -
Net Loss (111,287.36)| (111,287.36)
Closing Balance 1,000,000.00| (286,174.36)| 713,825.64

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 8

As Per Our Report of Even Date

Moti Lal Dugar
Chairman

Arun Kumar Ojha
Director

Date: 2066-08-01
Place: Kathmandu

Sampa Lama
Director

Jagdish Agrawal, FCA

Partner

JBRH & Company
Chartered Accountants
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Schedule Annexed to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

As At Ashadh 31, 2066

Schedule 1: Share Capital

Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

(Amount in NRs.)

Authorized Capital
20,00,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each

Issued Capital
12,50,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each

Paid up Capital
10,00,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each and Rs. 1 paid for each
Total

Current Year

Previous Year

2065-066 2064-065
200,000,000.00 | 200,000,000.00
125,000,000.00 | 125,000,000.00

1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00
1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00

Schedule 3: Cash and Bank

Sanima Bikas Bank (Current A/C)
Sanima Bikas Bank (Call Deposit A/C)
Cash in Hand

Total

Current Year

Previous Year

2065-066 2064-065

10,000.00 768,007.00
716,066.67

190,000.00

726,066.67 958,007.00

Schedule 4: Loans, Advance and Deposits

Advance Tax Payment
Business Advance to Staff
Advance To Other
Prepaid TDS

Total Current Assets

Current Year

Previous Year

2065-066 2064-065
5,698.47
85,349.00 10,300.00
30,000.00
- 600.00
120,947.47 10,900.00

Schedule 5: Sundry Creditors & Payable

Sundry Creditor
Audit Fee Payable
Office Rent Payable
Payable to Staff
Expenses Payable
Total

Current Year

Previous Year

2065-066 2064-065
135,544.00 135,544.00
8,362.50 5,575.00
23,100.00 1,700.00
- 900.00

3,512.00
170,518.50 143,719.00
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Schedule Annexed to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

As At Ashadh 31, 2066

Schedule 6: Administrative Expenses

(Amount in NRs.)

Salary Exp.

Office Rent

Transportation Expenses
Stationery & Printing

Staff Refreshment Expenses
Guest Refreshment Expenses
Communication Exp.
Postage/Air/Document
Advertisement Expenses
Miscellaneous Expenses
Audit Fee

License Registr. Exp

Total

Current Year

Previous Year

2065-066 2064-065
63,800.00 18,000.00
24,000.00 2,000.00
1,287.00 1,005.00
474.00 3,210.00
195.00 -
4,340.00 -
11,257.00 22.00
1,5635.00 -
400.00 -
19,900.00 -
8,475.00 5,650.00
= 50,000.00
135,663.00 79,887.00

Schedule 7: Registration Expenses

Company Registration Expenses
Total

Current Year
2065-066

Previous Year
2064-065

95,000.00

95,000.00
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.
Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Schedule to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements as at Ashad 2066.

Schedule - 8: Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts

1. Introduction
Sanima Insurance Company Ltd. has been registered as public limited company for operating general insurance
business. The company has not yet obtained the certificate of operation and is still in process for obtaining license from
Beema Samiti.
2. Accounting Policies
A. Accounting Convention
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance certain relevant Nepal
Accounting Standards and requirements of Nepal Company Act, 2063 and Income Tax Act, 2058.
B. Fixed Assets and Depreciation
a. Fixed assets are stated at cost and are inclusive of all expenses to the date of commissioning/ putting the assets
to use.
b. Depreciation is charged as per the provision in Income Tax Act 2058.
C. Income
Since the company is in pre-operational phase, no income is generated during the year except interest income.
3. Notes to the Accounts
1. Being operational loss in the year, no corporate tax is required to provide.
2. Previous year’s Figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary.
84 : First Annual Report



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SANIMA INSURANCE CO. LTD.

We have audited the accompanying Balance Sheet of the M/S. Sanima Insurance Co. Ltd.,
Kathmandu, Nepal as at Ashad 32, 2067 (July 16, 2010) and the related Statement of Incqme and Cash
Flow Statement for the year. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing or relevant practices. Those
Standards or relevant practices require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe .
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. We express our opinion that:

a. We have obtained prompt replies to our queries and explanations asked for.
b. The financial statements are in agreement with the books of accounts maintained by the Company.

¢. The accounts and records of the Company have been accurately maintained in accordance with the
law.
R
d. To the best our information and according to the explanations given to us, neither the board of the
Directors nor any employee of the Company have acted contrary to legal provisions relating to
accounts nor committed any misappropriation causing loss or damage to the Company.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as of Ashad 32, 2067 (July 16, 2010) and of the results of its operation flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Nepal Accounting Standards or relevant practices and comply with

Company Act, 2063. .
CA. Janak Raj Kalakheti
JR Associates _
Chartered Accountants
Date: 2067/03,35 _ % /

Place: Kathmandu

"~ DN Bav- 2290 Dutalicadak Kathmandu Nenal. Tel: 01-4224974, E-mail: janak122@hotmail.com
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.
Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Balance-Sheet
As at Ashadh 32, 2067 (July 16, 2010)

(Amount in NRs.)
Schedules As At As At
32.03.2067 31.03.2066
Equity
Equity Holders' Fund
Share Capital 1 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00
Retained Earnings (401,396.93) (286,174.36)
Total Equity 598,603.07 713,825.64
Assets
Non Current Assets
Fixed Assets 2 51,790.00 51,790.00
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (22,658.13) (12,947.50)
Net Fixed Assets 29,131.87 38,842.50
Current Assets
Cash and Bank Balances 3 664,463.72 726,066.67
Loan Advance and deposits 4 106,700.48 120,947.47
Total Current Assets (A) 771,164.20 847,014.14
less: Current Liabilities & Provision
Sundry Creditors and Payable 5 63,189.00 34,974.50
Payable To Associates Co. 6 135,544.00 135,544.00
TDS Payable 2,960.00 1,512.50
Total Current Liabilities (B) 201,693.00 172,031.00
Net Current Assets (A-B) 569,471.20 674,983.14
Total Assets 598,603.07 713,825.64
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 8 As Per Our Report of Even Date
Sampa Lama Moti Lal Dugar CA. Janak Raj Kalakheti
Director Chairman JR Associates

Chartered Accountants

Date: 2067-08-25
Place: Kathmandu
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.
Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Income Statement
For the year ended on Ashadh 32, 2067 (July 16, 2010)

Income
Income
Total Income

Administrative expenses
Depreciation Charge
Sub Total

Net Profit/( loss) before tax

Provision for Income Tax

Net Profit/( loss) After Tax

Profit/(Loss) brought forward from last year

Net Profit/ (Loss) transferred to Balance Sheet

(Amount in NRs.)

Schedules Current Year | Previous Year
2066-067 2065-066

34,070.06 37,323.14

34,070.06 37,323.14

7 (139,582.00) (135,663.00)

2 (9,710.63) (12,947.50)
(149,292.63) (148,610.50)

(115,222.57)

(115,222.57)
(286,174.36)

(111,287.36)

(111,287.36)
(174,887.00)

(401,396.93)

(286,174.36)

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 8

Moti Lal Dugar
Chairman

Sampa Lama
Director

Date: 2067-08-25
Place: Kathmandu

As Per Our Report of Even Date

CA. Janak Raj Kalakheti
JR Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended Ashadh 32, 2067 (July 16, 2010)

(Amount in NRs.)

Cash flow from operating activities

Net Profit Before Taxation

Adjustment for:

Depreciation

Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital

Cash flow from changes in working capital
(Increase)/Decrease in current assets
Increase/(Decrease) in current liabilities
Cash Flow from operating activities

Cash flow on investing activities
Investment in shares
Purchase/Capitalisation of fixed assets
Cash flow on investing activities

Cash flow on financing activities
From issue of share capital
Cash flow on financing activities

Total cash generated in the year
Opening cash and bank balances
Cash and bank balance at the end of the year

Current Year
2066-067

Previous Year
2065-066

(115,222.57)

9,710.63
(105,511.94)

(111,287.36)

12,947.50
(98,339.86)

14,246.99 |  (110,047.47)
29,662.00 28,237.00
(61,602.95) |  (180,150.33)
- (51,790.00)

. (51,790.00)
(61,602.95) |  (231,940.33)
726,066.67 958,007.00
664,463.72 726,066.67

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 8

Sampa Lama Moti Lal Dugar
Director Chairman

Date: 2067-08-25
Place: Kathmandu

As Per Our Report of Even Date

CA. Janak Raj Kalakheti
JR Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.
Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Statement of Change in Equity
As at Ashadh 32, 2067 (July 16, 2010)

(Amount in NRs.)

Particulars Share capital Retained Total
Earning

Balance as at 31 Ashad 2066 1,000,000.00( (286,174.36)( 713,825.64

Adjustment During the year

Issue of Share Capital -

Net Loss (115,222.57)| (115,222.57)

Balance as at 32 Ashad 2067 1,000,000.00| (401,396.93)| 598,603.07

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 8

Moti Lal Dugar
Chairman

Sampa Lama
Director

Date: 2067-08-25
Place: Kathmandu

As Per Our Report of Even Date

CA. Janak Raj Kalakheti
JR Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Schedule Annexed to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

As At Ashadh 32, 2067

Schedule 1: Share Capital

(Amount in NRs.)

Authorized Capital
20,00,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each

Issued Capital
12,50,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each

Paid up Capital

Current Year
2066-067

Previous Year
2065-066

200,000,000.00

125,000,000.00

200,000,000.00

125,000,000.00

10,00,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each and Rs. 1 paid for each 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00
Total 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00
Schedule 3: Cash and Bank
Current Year | Previous Year
2066-067 2065-066
Sanima Bikas Bank (Current A/C) 600.00 10,000.00
Sanima Bikas Bank (Call Deposit A/C) 663,863.72 716,066.67
Total 664,463.72 726,066.67
Schedule 4: Loans, Advance and Deposits
Current Year | Previous Year
2066-067 2065-066
Miscellaneous Deposit 3,000.00 -
Advance Tax Payment 10,708.98 5,598.47
Business Advance to Staff 62,991.50 85,349.00
Advance To Other 30,000.00 30,000.00
Total Current Assets 106,700.48 120,947.47

Schedule 5: Sundry Creditors & Payable

Audit Fee Payable
Office Rent Payable
Expenses Payable
Total

Current Year

Previous Year

2066-067 2065-066
12,750.00 8,362.50
44,700.00 23,100.00
5,739.00 3,512.00
63,189.00 34,974.50
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Schedule Annexed to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

As At Ashadh 32, 2067

Schedule 6: Payable To Associates Co.

Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Current Year

Previous Year

2066-067 2065-066
Sanima Pvt. Ltd. 135,544.00 135,544.00
Total 135,544.00 135,544.00
Schedule 7: Administrative Expenses
Current Year Previous Year
2066-067 2065-066
Salary Exp. 70,710.00 63,800.00
Office Rent 24,000.00 24,000.00
Transportation Expenses 120.00 1,287.00
Stationery & Printing 13,000.00 474.00
Staff Refreshment Expenses - 195.00
Guest Refreshment Expenses - 4,340.00
Communication Exp. 11,405.00 11,257.00
Postage/Air/Document 500.00 1,535.00
Advertisement Expenses - 400.00
Miscellaneous Expenses - 19,900.00
Audit Fee 15,000.00 8,475.00
Office Consumable Goods 3,840.00 -
Meeting Expenses 1,007.00 -
Total 139,582.00 135,663.00
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.
Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Schedule to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements as at Ashad 2067.

Schedule - 8: Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts

1.

Introduction

Sanima Insurance Company Ltd. has been registered as public limited company for operating general insurance
business. The company has not yet obtained the certificate of operation and is still in process for obtaining license from
Beema Samiti.

Accounting Policies

A. Accounting Convention
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance certain relevant Nepal
Accounting Standards and requirements of Nepal Company Act, 2063 and Income Tax Act, 2058.

B. Fixed Assets and Depreciation
a. Fixed assets are stated at cost and are inclusive of all expenses to the date of commissioning/ putting the assets
to use.
b. Depreciation is charged as per the provision in Income Tax Act 2058.

C. Income
Since the company is in pre-operational phase, no income is generated during the year except interest income.

Notes to the Accounts
A. Being operational loss in the year, no corporate tax is required to provide.

B. Related Party Transactions
The Company has done the transaction with its related party, which are as below.

S.No. | Related Party Status Transaction Type Amount (Rs.)
1. Sanima Pvt. Ltd. Sister Concern Advanced Received 1,35,544
2. | Sanima Bikas Bank Ltd. Director Interested Account Operation Year End balance
NRs. 664,463.72

C. Previous year’s Figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary.
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ACHARYA & ASSOCIATES

Registered Auditors _ Contact No:
Regd. No. 2952, C.O.P. No. "C" 1114 Chitwan: 9845044234
ICAN Membership No. 6411, PAN: 301430524 Kathmandu: 98510 01434

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SANIMA INSURANCE CO. LTD.

We have audited the accompanying Balance Sheet of the M/S Sanima Insurance Co. Ltd.,
Kathmandu, Nepal as at Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011) and the related Statement of Income and Cash
Flow Statement for the year ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's
management, Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing or relevant practices. Those
Standards or relevant practices require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. We express our opinion that:

a. We have obtained prompt replies to our queries and explanations asked for.
b. The financial statements are in agreement with the books of accounts maintained by the Company.

c. The accounts and records of the Company have been accurately maintained in accordance with the
law.

d. To the best our information and according to the explanations given to us, neither the board of the
Directors nor any employee of the Company have acted contrary to legal provisions relating to
accounts nor committed any misappropriation causing loss or damage to the Company.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as of Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011) and of the results of its operation, operation flows for
the year then ended in accordance: with Nepal Accounting Standards, relevant practices and comply
with Company Act, 2063. T

Mukunda Acharya

Acharya and Associates
Registered Auditors

Date: 2068/9 2.5

Place: Kathmandu

E-mail: muksacharva@vahoo.com
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.
Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Balance-Sheet
As at Ashadh 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)

iforat SRR DUl fod.

Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

(Amount in NRs.)
Schedules As At As At
32.03.2068 32.03.2067
Equity
Equity Holders' Fund
Share Capital 1 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00
Retained Earnings (397,011.05) (401,396.93)
Total Equity 602,988.95 598,603.07
Assets
Non Current Assets
Fixed Assets 2 51,790.00 51,790.00
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (29,941.10) (22,658.13)
Net Fixed Assets 21,848.90 29,131.87
Current Assets
Cash and Bank Balances 3 676,083.29 664,463.72
Loan Advance and deposits 4 119,645.76 106,700.48
Total Current Assets (A) 795,729.05 771,164.20
less: Current Liabilities & Provision
Sundry Creditors and Payable 5 75,895.00 63,189.00
Payable To Associates Co. 6 135,544.00 135,544.00
TDS Payable 3,150.00 2,960.00
Total Current Liabilities (B) 214,589.00 201,693.00
Net Current Assets (A-B) 581,140.05 569,471.20
Total Assets 602,988.95 598,603.07

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 8

Arun Kumar Ojha Moti Lal Dugar
Director Chairman

Date: 2068-09-25
Place: Kathmandu

As Per Our Report of Even Date

Mukunda Acharya
Acharya & Accociates
Registered Auditors
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.
Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Income Statement
For the year ended on Ashadh 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)

(Amount in NRs.)
Schedules Current Year | Previous Year
2067-068 2066-067

Income
Income 47,581.85 34,070.06
Total Income 47,581.85 34,070.06
Administrative expenses 7 (35,913.00) (139,582.00)
Depreciation Charge 2 (7,282.97) (9,710.63)
Sub Total (43,195.97) (149,292.63)
Net Profit/( loss) before tax 4,385.88 (115,222.57)
Provision for Income Tax - -
Net Profit/( loss) After Tax 4,385.88 (115,222.57)

Profit/(Loss) brought forward from last year
Net Profit/ (Loss) transferred to Balance Sheet

(401,396.93)

(286,174.36)

(397,011.05)

(401,396.93)

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 8

Arun Kumar Ojha
Director

Moti Lal Dugar
Chairman

Date: 2068-09-25
Place: Kathmandu

As Per Our Report of Even Date

Mukunda Acharya
Acharya & Accociates
Registered Auditors
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.
Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended Ashadh 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)

(Amount in NRs.)
Current Year | Previous Year
2067-068 2066-067
Cash flow from operating activities
Net Profit Before Taxation 4,385.88 (115,222.57)
Adjustment for:
Depreciation 7,282.97 9,710.63
Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital 11,668.85 (105,511.94)
Cash flow from changes in working capital
(Increase)/Decrease in current assets (12,945.28) 14,246.99
Increase/(Decrease) in current liabilities 12,896.00 29,662.00
Cash Flow from operating activities 11,619.57 (61,602.95)
Cash flow on investing activities
Investment in shares
Purchase/Capitalisation of fixed assets - -
Cash flow on investing activities - -
Cash flow on financing activities
From issue of share capital - -
Cash flow on financing activities - -
Total cash generated in the year 11,619.57 (61,602.95)
Opening cash and bank balances 664,463.72 726,066.67
Cash and bank balance at the end of the year 676,083.29 664,463.72
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 8 As Per Our Report of Even Date
Arun Kumar Ojha Moti Lal Dugar Mukunda Acharya
Director Chairman Acharya & Accociates
Registered Auditors

Date: 2068-09-25
Place: Kathmandu
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.
Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Statement of Change in Equity
As at Ashadh 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)

(Amount in NRs.)
Particulars Share capital Retained Total
Earning
Balance as at 32 Ashad 2067 1,000,000.00| (401,396.93) 598,603.07
Adjustment During the year

Issue of Share Capital -
Net Loss 4,385.88 4,385.88
Balance as at 32 Ashad 2068 1,000,000.00| (397,011.05)| 602,988.95
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 8 As Per Our Report of Even Date

Arun Kumar Ojha Moti Lal Dugar Mukunda Acharya

Director Chairman Acharya & Accociates
Registered Auditors

Date: 2068-09-25
Place: Kathmandu
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Schedule Annexed to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

As At Ashadh 32, 2068

Schedule 1: Share Capital

Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

(Amount in NRs.)

Authorized Capital
20,00,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each

Issued Capital
12,50,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each

Paid up Capital
10,00,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each and Rs. 1 paid for each
Total

Current Year

Previous Year

2067-068 2066-067
200,000,000.00 | 200,000,000.00
125,000,000.00 | 125,000,000.00

1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00
1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00

Schedule 3: Cash and Bank

Sanima Bikas Bank (Current A/C)
Sanima Bikas Bank (Call Deposit A/C)
Total

Current Year

Previous Year

2067-068 2066-067
1,000.00 600.00
675,083.29 663,863.72
676,083.29 664,463.72

Schedule 4: Loans, Advance and Deposits

Miscellaneous Deposit
Advance Tax Payment
Business Advance to Staff
Advance To Other

Total Current Assets

Current Year

Previous Year

2067-068 2066-067
3,000.00 3,000.00
17,846.26 10,708.98
60,366.50 62,991.50
38,433.00 30,000.00
119,645.76 106,700.48

Schedule 5: Sundry Creditors & Payable

Audit Fee Payable
Office Rent Payable
Expenses Payable
Total

Current Year

Previous Year

2067-068 2066-067
4,250.00 12,750.00
66,300.00 44,700.00
5,345.00 5,739.00
75,895.00 63,189.00

Schedule 6: Payable To Associates Co.

Sanima Pvt. Ltd.
Total

Current Year

Previous Year

2067-068 2066-067
135,544.00 135,544.00
135,544.00 135,544.00
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Schedule Annexed to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

As At Ashadh 32, 2068

Schedule 7: Administrative Expenses

Salary Exp.

Office Rent
Transportation Expenses
Stationery & Printing
Communication Exp.
Postage/Air/Document
Audit Fee

Office Consumable Goods
Meeting Expenses

Total

Current Year Previous Year
2067-068 2066-067
- 70,710.00
24,000.00 24,000.00
- 120.00

225.00 13,000.00
6,063.00 11,405.00
625.00 500.00
5,000.00 15,000.00
- 3,840.00

- 1,007.00
35,913.00 139,582.00
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.
Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Schedule - 8: Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accountsas at Ashadh 32, 2068

1. Introduction:
Sanima Insurance Company Ltd. has been registered as public limited company for operating general insurance
business. The company has applied for operating license and not yet obtained the certificate of operation and is still
in process for obtaining license from Beema Samiti.

2. Accounting Policies
A. Accounting Convention
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance certain relevant Nepal
Accounting Standards and requirements of Nepal Company Act, 2063 and Income Tax Act, 2058.
B. Fixed Assets and Depreciation
a. Fixed assets are stated at cost and are inclusive of all expenses to the date of commissioning/ putting the assets
to use.

b. Depreciation is charged as per the provision in Income Tax Act 2058.

C. Income
Since the company is in pre-operational phase, no income is generated during the year except interest income.

3. Notes to the Accounts
A. Being operational loss in the year, no corporate tax is required to provide.

B. Related Party Transactions
The Company has done the transaction with its related party, which are as below.

S.No. | Related Party Status Transaction Type Amount (Rs.)
1. Sanima Pvt. Ltd. Sister Concern Advanced Received 1,35,544
2. | Sanima Bikas Bank Ltd. Director Interested Account Operation Year End balance
NRs. 676,083.29

C. Previous year’s Figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary.
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Regd. (ICAN)No.: 62

PAN : 300732092 Raju kumar Sibakoti, FCA
157/10 Janapath Marg

Si BGKOTI & HSSOC i HTE S Anamnagar, Kathmandu, Nepal
Tel: 00977-4770187, 4770796

Chartered Accountants E-mall: carajusibakoti@gmail.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SANIMA INSURANCE CO. LTD.

We have audited the accompanying Balance Sheet of the M/S. Sanima Insurance Co. Ltd., Kathmandu,
Nepal as at Ashad 31, 2069 (July 15, 2012) and the related Statement of Income and Cash Flow
Statement for the year. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing or relevant practices. Those
Standards or relevant practices that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion. We express our opinion that:

a. We have obtained prompt replies to our queries and explanations asked for.
b. The financial statements are in agreement with the books of accounts maintained by the Company.

c. The accounts and records of the Company have been accurately maintained in accordance with the
law.

d. To the best our information and according to the explanations given to us, neither the board of the
Directors nor any employee of the Company have acted contrary to legal provisions relating to
accounts nor committed any misappropriation causing loss or damage to the Company.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as of Ashad 31, 2069 (July 15, 2012) and of the results of its operation flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Nepal Accounting Standards and o levant practices and comply
with Company Acts, 2063.

~Raju Kumar Sibakoti, FCA
Sibakoti & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Date: 2069~ 09-1(
Place: Kathmandu
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Balance-Sheet

As at Ashadh 31, 2069 (July 15, 2015)

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

(Amount in NRs.)

Equity

Equity Holders' Fund
Share Capital
Retained Earnings
Total Equity

Assets

Non Current Assets

Fixed Assets

Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Net Fixed Assets

Current Assets

Cash and Bank Balances
Loan Advance and deposits
Total Current Assets (A)

less: Current Liabilities & Provision

Sundry Creditors and Payable
Payable To Associates Co.
TDS Payable

Total Current Liabilities (B)
Net Current Assets (A-B)
Total Assets

Schedules As At As At
31.03.2069 32.03.2068

1 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00
(394,525.83) (397,011.05)
605,474.17 602,988.95

2 51,790.00 51,790.00
(35,403.33) (29,941.10)

16,386.67 21,848.90

3 719,573.93 676,083.29
4 119,637.57 119,645.76
839,211.50 795,729.05

5 111,955.00 75,895.00
6 135,544.00 135,544.00
2,625.00 3,150.00

250,124.00 214,589.00

589,087.50 581,140.05

605,474.17 602,988.95

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 8

Arun Kumar Ojha
Director

Date: 2069-09-16
Place: Kathmandu

Moti Lal Dugar
Chairman

As Per Our Report of Even Date

Raj Kumar Sibakoti, FCA
Sibakoti and Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.
Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Income Statement
For the year ended on Ashadh 31, 2069 (July 15, 2012)

Income
Income
Total Income

Administrative expenses
Depreciation Charge
Sub Total

Net Profit/( loss) before tax

Provision for Income Tax

Net Profit/( loss) After Tax

Profit/(Loss) brought forward from last year

Net Profit/ (Loss) transferred to Balance Sheet

(Amount in NRs.)

Schedules Current Year | Previous Year
2068-069 2067-068

56,165.45 47,581.85

56,165.45 47,581.85

7 (48,218.00) (35,913.00)

2 (5,462.23) (7,282.97)
(53,680.23) (43,195.97)

2,485.22 4,385.88

2,485.22 4,385.88

(397,011.05)

(401,396.93)

(394,525.83)

(397,011.05)

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 8

Moti Lal Dugar
Chairman

Arun Kumar Ojha
Director

Date: 2069-09-16
Place: Kathmandu

As Per Our Report of Even Date

Raj Kumar Sibakoti, FCA
Sibakoti and Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended Ashadh 31, 2069 (July 15, 2012)

Cash flow from operating activities

Net Profit Before Taxation

Adjustment for:

Depreciation

Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital

Cash flow from changes in working capital
(Increase)/Decrease in current assets
Increase/(Decrease) in current liabilities
Cash Flow from operating activities

Cash flow on investing activities
Investment in shares
Purchase/Capitalisation of fixed assets
Cash flow on investing activities

Cash flow on financing activities
From issue of share capital
Cash flow on financing activities

Total cash generated in the year
Opening cash and bank balances
Cash and bank balance at the end of the year

(Amount in NRs.)

Current Year | Previous Year
2068-069 2067-068
2,485.22 4,385.88
5,462.23 7,282.97
7,947.45 11,668.85
8.19 (12,945.28)
35,535.00 12,896.00
43,490.64 11,619.57
43,490.64 11,619.57
676,083.29 664,463.72
719,573.93 676,083.29

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 8

Arun Kumar Ojha Moti Lal Dugar
Director Chairman

Date: 2069-09-16
Place: Kathmandu

As Per Our Report of Even Date

Raj Kumar Sibakoti, FCA
Sibakoti and Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Statement of Change in Equity
As at Ashadh 31, 2069 (July 15, 2012)

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

(Amount in NRs.)

Particulars Share capital Retained Total
Earning

Balance as at 32 Ashad 2068 1,000,000.00| (397,011.05)| 602,988.95
Adjustment During the year
Issue of Share Capital -
Net Loss 2,485.22 2,485.22
Balance as at 31 Ashad 2069 1,000,000.00 | (394,525.83)| 605,474.17

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 8

Arun Kumar Ojha
Director

Date: 2069-09-16
Place: Kathmandu

Moti Lal Dugar
Chairman

As Per Our Report of Even Date

Raj Kumar Sibakoti, FCA
Sibakoti and Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Schedule Annexed to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

As At Ashadh 31, 2069

Schedule 1: Share Capital

(Amount in NRs.)

Current Year | Previous Year
2068-069 2067-068
Authorized Capital
20,00,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each 200,000,000.00 | 200,000,000.00
Issued Capital
12,50,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each 125,000,000.00 | 125,000,000.00
Paid up Capital
10,00,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each and Rs. 1 paid for each 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00
Total 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00
Schedule 3: Cash and Bank
Current Year | Previous Year
2068-069 2067-068
Sanima Bikas Bank (Current A/C) 1,000.00 1,000.00
Sanima Bikas Bank (Call Deposit A/C) 718,573.93 675,083.29
Total 719,573.93 676,083.29
Schedule 4: Loans, Advance and Deposits
Current Year | Previous Year
2068-069 2067-068
Miscellaneous Deposit 3,000.00 3,000.00
Advance Tax Payment 26,271.07 17,846.26
Business Advance to Staff 60,366.50 60,366.50
Advance To Other 30,000.00 38,433.00
Total Current Assets 119,637.57 119,645.76
Schedule 5: Sundry Creditors & Payable
Current Year | Previous Year
2068-069 2067-068
Audit Fee Payable 16,725.00 4,250.00
Office Rent Payable 87,900.00 66,300.00
Expenses Payable 7,330.00 5,345.00
Total 111,955.00 75,895.00

Schedule 6: Payable To Associates Co.

Sanima Pvt. Ltd.
Total

Current Year

Previous Year

2068-069 2067-068
135,544.00 135,544.00
135,544.00 135,544.00

108 : First Annual Report



iferdr s e DUl fod.
Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.
Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Schedule Annexed to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements
As At Ashadh 31, 2069

Schedule 7: Administrative Expenses

Current Year | Previous Year

2068-069 2067-068

Office Rent 24,000.00 24,000.00
Stationery & Printing - 225.00
Communication Exp. 6,643.00 6,063.00
Postage/Air/Document 625.00 625.00
Audit Fee 16,950.00 5,000.00
Total 48,218.00 35,913.00
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Schedule - 8: Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accountsas at Ashadh 31, 2069

1. Introduction

Sanima Insurance Company Ltd. has been registered as public limited company for operating general insurance

business. The company has applied for operating license and not yet obtained the certificate of operation and is still
in process for obtaining license from Beema Samiti.

2. Accounting Policies

A. Accounting Convention

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance certain relevant Nepal

Accounting Standards and requirements of Nepal Company Act, 2063 and Income Tax Act, 2058.

B. Fixed Assets and Depreciation:

a. Fixed assets are stated at cost and are inclusive of all expenses to the date of commissioning/ putting the assets

to use.
b. Depreciation is charged as per the provision in Income Tax Act 2058.

C. Income

Since the company is in pre-operational phase, no income is generated during the year except interest income.

3. Notes to the Accounts

A. Being operational loss in the year, no corporate tax is required to provide.

B. Related Party Transactions

The Company has done the transaction with its related party, which are as below.

S.No.

Related Party

Status

Transaction Type

Amount (Rs.)

1.
2.

Sanima Pvt. Ltd.
Sanima Bikas Bank Ltd.

Sister Concern
Director Interested

Advanced Received
Account Operation

1,35,544
Year End balance
NRs. 719,573.93

C. Previous year’s Figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary.
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Regd. (ICAN)No.: 62

PAN : 300732092 Raju kumar Sibakoti, FCA

157110 J hM
S ' B ﬁ KOTI tl ﬁ S SOC I ﬁ T E s Anamnagar, Kath;n:nrzia: . Ne:?l
C hartere d Accoun tants Tel: 00977-4770187, 4770796

E-mail: carajusibakoti@gmail.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SANIMA INSURANCE CO. LTD.

We have audited the accompanyin§ Balance Sheet of the M/S Sanima Insurance Co. Ltd, Kathmandu,
Nepal as at Ashad 31, 2070 (15" July 2013) and the related Statement of Income and Cash Flow
Statement for the year ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statzments based cn our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standard on Auditing or relevant practices. Those
Standards or relevant practices require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatements. An audit includes examining
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amount and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that out audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion. We express our opinion that:

a. We have obtained prompt replies to our queries and explanations asked for.

b. The financial statements are in agreement with the books of accounts maintained by the
Company,

C. The accounts and reccrds of the company have been accurately maintained in accordance

with the law.

d. To the best our information and according to the explanations given to us, neither the Board
of directors nor any employee of the company have acted contrary to legal provisions relating
to accounts nor committed any misappropriation causing loss or damage to the company.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the company
as of Ashad 31, 2070 (15™ July 2013), and of the results of its operation and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Nepal Accounting Standards or relevant practices and comply with
Company Act 2063.

aju Kumar Sibakoti, FCA
Sibakoti & Clafes—.

Date: 2070-09-2
Place: Kathmandu
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Balance-Sheet
As at Ashadh 31, 2070 (July 15, 2013)

(Amount in NRs.)
Schedules As At As At
31.03.2070 31.03.2069
Equity
Equity Holders' Fund
Share Capital 1 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00
Retained Earnings (410,040.82) (394,525.83)
Total Equity 589,959.18 605,474.17
Assets
Non Current Assets
Fixed Assets 2 51,790.00 51,790.00
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (39,500.00) (35,403.33)
Net Fixed Assets 12,290.00 16,386.67
Current Assets
Cash and Bank Balances 3 734,160.96 719,573.93
Loan Advance and deposits 4 125,163.22 119,637.57
Total Current Assets (A) 859,324.18 839,211.50
less: Current Liabilities & Provision
Sundry Creditors and Payable 5 141,970.00 111,955.00
Payable To Associates Co. 6 137,060.00 135,544.00
TDS Payable 2,625.00 2,625.00
Total Current Liabilities (B) 281,655.00 250,124.00
Net Current Assets (A-B) 577,669.18 589,087.50
Total Assets 589,959.18 605,474.17

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 8

Arun Kumar Ojha Jugal Bhurtel
Director Director

Date: 2070-09-24
Place: Kathmandu

As Per Our Report of Even Date

Raj Kumar Sibakoti, FCA
Sibakoti and Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.
Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Income Statement
For the year ended on Ashadh 31, 2070 (July 15, 2013)

(Amount in NRs.)
Schedules Current Year | Previous Year
2069-070 2068-069

Income
Income 36,837.68 56,165.45
Total Income 36,837.68 56,165.45
Administrative expenses 7 (48,256.00) (48,218.00)
Depreciation Charge 2 (4,096.67) (5,462.23)
Sub Total (52,352.67) (53,680.23)
Net Profit/( loss) before tax (15,514.99) 2,485.22
Provision for Income Tax - -
Net Profit/( loss) After Tax (15,514.99) 2,485.22
Profit/(Loss) brought forward from last year (394,525.83) (397,011.05)
Net Profit/ (Loss) transferred to Balance Sheet (410,040.82) (394,525.83)

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 8

Arun Kumar Ojha
Director

Jugal Bhurtel
Director

Date: 2070-09-24
Place: Kathmandu

As Per Our Report of Even Date

Raj Kumar Sibakoti, FCA
Sibakoti and Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended Ashadh 31, 2070 (July 15, 2013)

Cash flow from operating activities
Net Profit Before Taxation
Adjustment for:

Depreciation

Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital

Cash flow from changes in working capital
(Increase)/Decrease in current assets
Increase/(Decrease) in current liabilities
Cash Flow from operating activities

Cash flow on investing activities
Investment in shares
Purchase/Capitalisation of fixed assets
Cash flow on investing activities

Cash flow on financing activities
From issue of share capital
Cash flow on financing activities

Total cash generated in the year
Opening cash and bank balances
Cash and bank balance at the end of the year

(Amount in NRs.)

Current Year | Previous Year
2069-070 2068-069
(15,514.99) 2,485.22
4,096.67 5,462.23
(11,418.32) 7,947.45
(5,525.65) 8.19
31,531.00 35,535.00
14,587.03 43,490.64
14,587.03 43,490.64
719,573.93 676,083.29
734,160.96 719,573.93

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 8

Arun Kumar Ojha Jugal Bhurtel
Director Director

Date: 2070-09-24
Place: Kathmandu

As Per Our Report of Even Date

Raj Kumar Sibakoti, FCA
Sibakoti and Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Statement of Change in Equity
As at Ashadh 31, 2070 (July 15, 2013)

(Amount in NRs.)

Particulars Share capital Retained Total
Earning

Balance as at 31 Ashad 2069 1,000,000.00( (394,525.83)| 605,474.17
Adjustment During the year
Issue of Share Capital -
Net Loss (15,514.99)| (15,514.99)
Balance as at 31 Ashad 2070 1,000,000.00( (410,040.82)| 589,959.18

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 8

Arun Kumar Ojha Jugal Bhurtel
Director Director

Date: 2070-09-24
Place: Kathmandu

As Per Our Report of Even Date

Raj Kumar Sibakoti, FCA
Sibakoti and Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Schedule Annexed to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

As At Ashadh 31, 2070

Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Schedule 1: Share Capital (Amount in NRs.)

Current Year Previous Year
2069-070 2068-069

Authorized Capital

20,00,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each 200,000,000.00 | 200,000,000.00

Issued Capital

12,50,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each 125,000,000.00 | 125,000,000.00

Paid up Capital

10,00,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each and Rs. 1 paid for each 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00

Total 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00

Schedule 3: Cash and Bank

Sanima Bikas Bank (Current A/C)
Sanima Bikas Bank (Call Deposit A/C)
Total

Current Year

Previous Year

2069-070 2068-069
1,000.00 1,000.00
733,160.96 718,573.93
734,160.96 719,573.93

Schedule 4: Loans, Advance and Deposits

Miscellaneous Deposit
Advance Tax Payment
Business Advance to Staff
Advance To Other

Total Current Assets

Current Year

Previous Year

2069-070 2068-069
3,000.00 3,000.00
31,796.72 26,271.07
60,366.50 60,366.50
30,000.00 30,000.00
125,163.22 119,637.57

Schedule 5: Sundry Creditors & Payable

Current Year

Previous Year

2069-070 2068-069

Audit Fee Payable 16,725.00 16,725.00

Office Rent Payable 109,500.00 87,900.00

Expenses Payable 15,745.00 7,330.00

Total 141,970.00 111,955.00
Schedule 6: Payable To Associates Co.

Current Year | Previous Year

2069-070 2068-069

Sanima Pvt. Ltd. 135,544.00 135,544.00

Sanima Hydropower (P.) Ltd. 1,516.00 -

Total 137,060.00 135,544.00
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Schedule Annexed to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

As At Ashadh 31, 2070

Schedule 7: Administrative Expenses

Office Rent
Miscellaneous Exp
Communication Exp.
Postage/Air/Document
Audit Fee

Total

Current Year

Previous Year

2069-070 2068-069
24,000.00 24,000.00
705.00 -
5,851.00 6,643.00
750.00 625.00
16,950.00 16,950.00
48,256.00 48,218.00
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Schedule - 8: Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accountsas at Ashadh 31, 2070

1. Introduction
Sanima Insurance Company Ltd. has been registered as public limited company for operating general insurance
business. The company has applied for operating license and not yet obtained the certificate of operation and is still
in process for obtaining license from Beema Samiti.

2. Accounting Policies

A. Accounting Convention
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance certain relevant Nepal
Accounting Standards and requirements of Nepal Company Act, 2063 and Income Tax Act, 2058.

B. Fixed Assets and Depreciation
a. Fixed assets are stated at cost and are inclusive of all expenses to the date of commissioning/ putting the assets
to use.
b. Depreciation is charged as per the provision in Income Tax Act 2058.

C. Income
Since the company is in pre-operational phase, no income is generated during the year except interest income.

3. Notes to the Accounts
A. Being operational loss in the year, no corporate tax is required to provide.

B. Related Party Transactions:
The Company has done the transaction with its related party, which are as below.

S.No. | Related Party Status Transaction Type Amount (Rs.)
1. | Sanima Pvt. Ltd. Sister Concern Advanced Received 1,35,544
2. | Sanima Hydropower Sister Concern Payable 1,516
3. | Sanima Bikas Bank Ltd. Director Interested Account Operation Year End balance
NRs. 734,160.96

C. Previous year’s Figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary.
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Regd. (ICAN) No.079
PAN: 500182468

i D DLy 157/10 Janapath Marg
=s= === 2 and Co. Anamnagar, Kathmandu, Nepa)
Tel: 4770187, 4770796

Chartered Accountants E-mail: jbrh@info.com.np

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SANIMA INSURANCE Co. LTD.

We have audited the accompanying Balance Sheet of the M/S. Sanima Insurance Co. Ltd,
Kathmandu, Nepal as at Ashad 32, 2071 (July 16, 2014) and the related Statement of Income and Cash
Flow Statement for the period. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing or relevant practices. Those
Standards or relevant practices require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. We express our opinion that:

a. We have obtained prompt replies to our queries and explanations asked for.
b. The financial statements are in agreement with the books of accounts maintained by the Company.

c. The accounts and records of the Company have been accurately maintained in accordance with the
law.

d. To the best our information and according to the explanations given to us, neither the board of the
Directors nor any employee of the Company have acted contrary to legal provisions relating to
accounts nor committed any misappropriation causing loss or damage to the Company.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as of Ashad 32, 2071 (July 16, 2014) and of the results of its operation flows for the period
then ended in accordance with Nepal Accounting Standards or relevant practices and comply with
Company Act, 2063. ﬂ

ZRH and 3
BRI o

—Raju Kumar Sibakoti,];’
JBRH & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Date: 201~ 06-28
Place: Kathmandu
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.
Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Balance-Sheet
As at Ashadh 32, 2071 ( July 16, 2014)

(Amount in NRs.)
Schedules As At As At
32.03.2071 31.03.2070
Equity
Equity Holders' Fund
Share Capital 1 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00
Retained Earnings (425,365.58) (410,040.82)
Total Equity 574,634.42 589,959.18
Assets
Non Current Assets
Fixed Assets 2 51,790.00 51,790.00
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (42,572.50) (39,500.00)
Net Fixed Assets 9,217.50 12,290.00
Current Assets
Cash and Bank Balances 3 584,964.73 734,160.96
Loan Advance and deposits 4 128,954.19 125,163.22
Total Current Assets (A) 713,918.92 859,324.18
less: Current Liabilities & Provision
Sundry Creditors and Payable 5 148,277.00 141,970.00
Payable To Associates Co. 6 - 137,060.00
TDS Payable 225.00 2,625.00
Total Current Liabilities (B) 148,502.00 281,655.00
Net Current Assets (A-B) 565,416.92 577,669.18
Total Assets 574,634.42 589,959.18
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 8 As Per Our Report of Even Date
Arun Kumar Ojha Motilal Dugar Raj Kumar Sibakoti, FCA
Director Chairman Sibakoti and Associates

Chartered Accountants

Date: 2071-06-28
Place: Kathmandu
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.
Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Income Statement
For the year ended on Ashadh 32, 2071 (July 16, 2014)

Income
Income
Total Income

Administrative expenses
Depreciation Charge
Sub Total

Net Profit/( loss) before tax

Provision for Income Tax

Net Profit/( loss) After Tax

Profit/(Loss) brought forward from last year

Net Profit/ (Loss) transferred to Balance Sheet

(Amount in NRs.)

Schedules Current Year | Previous Year
2070-071 2069-070

31,939.74 36,837.68

31,939.74 36,837.68

7 (44,192.00) (48,256.00)
2 (3,072.50) (4,096.67)
(47,264.50) (52,352.67)

(15,324.76) (15,514.99)

(15,324.76) (15,514.99)
(410,040.82) (394,525.83)
(425,365.58) (410,040.82)

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 8

Motilal Dugar
Chairman

Arun Kumar Ojha
Director

Date: 2071-06-28
Place: Kathmandu

As Per Our Report of Even Date

Raj Kumar Sibakoti, FCA
Sibakoti and Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended Ashadh 32, 2071 (July 16, 2014)

Cash flow from operating activities
Net Profit Before Taxation
Adjustment for:

Depreciation

Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital

Cash flow from changes in working capital
(Increase)/Decrease in current assets
Increase/(Decrease) in current liabilities
Cash Flow from operating activities

Cash flow on investing activities
Investment in shares
Purchase/Capitalisation of fixed assets
Cash flow on investing activities

Cash flow on financing activities
From issue of share capital
Cash flow on financing activities

Total cash generated in the year
Opening cash and bank balances
Cash and bank balance at the end of the year

(Amount in NRs.)

Current Year | Previous Year
2070-071 2069-070
(15,324.76) (15,514.99)
3,072.50 4,096.67
(12,252.26) (11,418.32)
(3,790.97) (5,525.65)
(133,153.00) 31,531.00
(149,196.23) 14,587.03
(149,196.23) 14,587.03
734,160.96 719,573.93
584,964.73 734,160.96

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 8

Arun Kumar Ojha Motilal Dugar
Director Chairman

Date: 2071-06-28
Place: Kathmandu

As Per Our Report of Even Date

Raj Kumar Sibakoti, FCA
Sibakoti and Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.
Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Statement of Change in Equity
As at Ashadh 32, 2071 (July 16, 2014)

(Amount in NRs.)

Particulars Share capital Retained Total
Earning

Balance as at 31 Ashad 2070 1,000,000.00( (410,040.82)( 589,959.18

Adjustment During the year
Issue of Share Capital

Net Loss

Balance as at 32 Ashad 2071 1,000,000.00

(15,324.76)|  (15,324.76)
(425,365.58)| 574,634.42

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 8

Arun Kumar Ojha Motilal Dugar
Director Chairman

Date: 2071-06-28
Place: Kathmandu

As Per Our Report of Even Date

Raj Kumar Sibakoti, FCA
Sibakoti and Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Schedule Annexed to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

As At Ashadh 32, 2071

Schedule 1: Share Capital

(Amount in NRs.)

Authorized Capital
20,00,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each

Issued Capital
12,50,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each

Paid up Capital
10,00,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each and Rs. 1 paid for each
Total

Current Year
2070-071

Previous Year
2069-070

200,000,000.00

125,000,000.00

1,000,000.00

200,000,000.00

125,000,000.00

1,000,000.00

1,000,000.00

1,000,000.00

Schedule 3: Cash and Bank

Sanima Bikas Bank (Current A/C)
Sanima Bikas Bank (Call Deposit A/C)
Total

Current Year

Previous Year

2070-071 2069-070
1,000.00 1,000.00
583,964.73 733,160.96
584,964.73 734,160.96

Schedule 4: Loans, Advance and Deposits

Current Year

Previous Year

2070-071 2069-070

Miscellaneous Deposit 2,000.00 3,000.00

Advance Tax Payment 36,587.69 31,796.72

Business Advance to Staff 60,367.00 60,366.50

Advance To Other 30,000.00 30,000.00

Total Current Assets 128,954.69 125,163.22
Schedule 5: Sundry Creditors & Payable

Current Year Previous Year

2070-071 2069-070

Audit Fee Payable 16,725.00 16,725.00

Office Rent Payable 131,100.00 109,500.00

Expenses Payable 452.00 15,745.00

Total 148,277.00 141,970.00

Schedule 6: Payable To Associates Co.

Sanima Pvt. Ltd.
Sanima Hydropower (P.) Ltd.
Total

Current Year
2070-071

Previous Year
2069-070

135,544.00
1,5616.00

137,060.00
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.
Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Schedule Annexed to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements
As At Ashadh 32, 2071

Schedule 7: Administrative Expenses

Current Year | Previous Year

2070-071 2069-070

Office Rent 24,000.00 24,000.00
Miscellaneous Exp - 705.00
Communication Exp. 3,242.00 5,851.00
Postage/Air/Document - 750.00
Audit Fee 16,950.00 16,950.00
Total 44,192.00 48,256.00
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Schedule - 8: Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accountsas at Ashadh 32, 2071

1. Introduction

Sanima Insurance Company Ltd. has been registered as public limited company for operating general insurance
business. The company has applied for operating license and not yet obtained the certificate of operation and is still

in process for obtaining license from Beema Samiti.

2. Accounting Policies

A. Accounting Convention

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance certain relevant Nepal
Accounting Standards and requirements of Nepal Company Act, 2063 and Income Tax Act, 2058.

B. Fixed Assets and Depreciation
a. Fixed assets are stated at cost and are inclusive of all expenses to the date of commissioning/ putting the assets

to use.

b. Depreciation is charged as per the provision in Income Tax Act 2058.

C. Income

Since the company is in pre-operational phase, no income is generated during the year except interest income.

3. Notes to the Accounts
A. Being operational loss in the year, no corporate tax is required to provide.

B. Related Party Transactions:

The Company has done the transaction with its related party, which are as below.

S.No.

Related Party

Status

Transaction Type

Amount (Rs.)

1.

Sanima Bikas Bank Ltd.

Director Interested

Account Operation

Year End balance
NRs. 584,964.73

C. Previous year’s Figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary.
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SHARMA & COMPANY

PAN No.: 301084561 o2
Mobile: 9851003866 RegdiAuditors) Membership No.: 5753
E-mail: r_pradeep200@yahoo.com Sor——T2w S/ The Institute of C/A Nepal

Ref. Date:

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SANIMA INSURANCE CO. LTD.

We have audited the accompanying Balance Sheet of the M/S Sanima Insurance Co. Ltd. Kathmandu, Nepal
as at Ashad 31, 2072 (July 16, 2015) and the related Statement of Income and Cash Flow Statement for the
period. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We coaducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing or relevant practices. Those
Standards or relevant practices require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion. We express our opinion that:

a W have obtained prompt replies to our queries and explanations asked for.

b. The financial statements are in agreement with the books of accounts maintained by the Company.

¢.  Th: accounts and records of the Company have been accurately maintained in accordance with the law.
d. To the best our information and according to the explanations given to us, neither the board of the

Dirzctors nor any employee of the Company have acted contrary to legal provisions relating to accounts
nor committed any misappropriation causing loss or damage to the Company.

In our opinion, the [ina:ncial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as
of Ashad 31, 2072 (July 16, 2015) and of the results of its operation flows for the year then ended in
accordunce with Nepal Accounting Standards or relevant practices and comply with Company Act, 2063.

G l‘éﬁzdehafma; )

Shary \& Co.

Date: 26%2 “09-0%
Place: iKathmandu
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

(Amount in NRs.)
Schedules As At As At
31.03.2072 32.03.2071

Equity
Equity Holders' Fund
Share Capital 1 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00
Retained Earnings (436,938.15) (425,365.58)
Total Equity 563,061.85 574,634.42
Assets
Non Current Assets
Fixed Assets 2 51,790.00 51,790.00
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (44,876.88) (42,572.50)
Net Fixed Assets 6,913.12 9,217.50
Current Assets
Cash and Bank Balances 3 585,941.86 584,964.73
Loan Advance and deposits 4 129,106.87 128,954.19
Total Current Assets (A) 715,048.73 713,918.92
less: Current Liabilities & Provision
Sundry Creditors and Payable 5 156,950.00 148,277.00
TDS Payable 1,950.00 225.00
Total Current Liabilities (B) 158,900.00 148,502.00
Net Current Assets (A-B) 556,148.73 565,416.92
Total Assets 563,061.85 574,634.42

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 7

Arun Kumar Ojha
Director

Date: 2072-09-08
Place: Kathmandu

Motilal Dugar
Chairman

As Per Our Report of Even Date

Ram Prasad Sharma, RA
Sharma & Co.
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.
Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Income Statement
For the year ended on Ashadh 31, 2072 (July 16, 2015)

Income
Income
Total Income

Administrative expenses
Depreciation Charge
Sub Total

Net Profit/( loss) before tax

Provision for Income Tax

Net Profit/( loss) After Tax

Profit/(Loss) brought forward from last year

Net Profit/ (Loss) transferred to Balance Sheet

(Amount in NRs.)

Schedules Current Year | Previous Year
2071-072 2070-071

21,017.81 31,939.74

21,017.81 31,939.74

6 (30,286.00) (44,192.00)
2 (2,304.38) (3,072.50)
(32,590.38) (47,264.50)

(11,572.57) (15,324.76)

(11,572.57) (15,324.76)
(425,365.58) (410,040.82)
(436,938.15) (425,365.58)

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 7

Arun Kumar Ojha
Director

Motilal Dugar
Chairman

Date: 2072-09-08
Place: Kathmandu

As Per Our Report of Even Date

Ram Prasad Sharma, RA
Sharma & Co.
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.
Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended Ashadh 31, 2072 (July 16, 2015)

(Amount in NRs.)
Current Year | Previous Year
2071-072 2070-071
Cash flow from operating activities
Net Profit Before Taxation (11,572.57) (15,324.76)
Adjustment for:
Depreciation 2,304.38 3,072.50
Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital (9,268.19) (12,252.26)
Cash flow from changes in working capital
(Increase)/Decrease in current assets (152.68) (3,790.97)
Increase/(Decrease) in current liabilities 10,398.00 (133,153.00)
Cash Flow from operating activities 977.13 (149,196.23)
Cash flow on investing activities
Investment in shares
Purchase/Capitalisation of fixed assets - -
Cash flow on investing activities - -
Cash flow on financing activities
From issue of share capital S -
Cash flow on financing activities - -
Total cash generated in the year 977.13 (149,196.23)
Opening cash and bank balances 584,964.73 734,160.96
Cash and bank balance at the end of the year 585,941.86 584,964.73
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 7 As Per Our Report of Even Date
Arun Kumar Ojha Motilal Dugar Ram Prasad Sharma, RA
Director Chairman Sharma & Co.

Date: 2072-09-08
Place: Kathmandu
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Statement of Change in Equity
As at Ashadh 31, 2072 (July 16, 2015)

(Amount in NRs.)

Particulars Share capital Retained Total
Earning
Balance as at 32 Ashad 2071 1,000,000.00 ( (425,365.58)| 574,634.42
Adjustment During the year
Issue of Share Capital -
Net Loss (11,572.57)| (11,572.57)
Balance as at 31 Ashad 2072 1,000,000.00| (436,938.15)| 563,061.85
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 7 As Per Our Report of Even Date
Arun Kumar Ojha Motilal Dugar Ram Prasad Sharma, RA
Director Chairman Sharma & Co.

Date: 2072-09-08
Place: Kathmandu
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Schedule Annexed to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

As At Ashadh 31, 2072

Schedule 1: Share Capital

Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

(Amount in NRs.)

Authorized Capital
20,00,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each

Issued Capital
12,50,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each

Paid up Capital
10,00,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each and Rs. 1 paid for each
Total

Current Year

Previous Year

2071-072 2070-071
200,000,000.00 | 200,000,000.00
125,000,000.00 | 125,000,000.00

1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00
1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00

Schedule 3: Cash and Bank

Sanima Bikas Bank (Current A/C)
Sanima Bikas Bank (Call Deposit A/C)
Total

Current Year

Previous Year

2071-072 2070-071
1,000.00 1,000.00
584,941.86 583,964.73
585,941.86 584,964.73

Schedule 4: Loans, Advance and Deposits

Miscellaneous Deposit
Advance Tax Payment
Business Advance to Staff
Advance To Other

Total Current Assets

Current Year

Previous Year

2071-072 2070-071
2,000.00 2,000.00
39,740.37 36,587.69
57,366.50 60,367.00
30,000.00 30,000.00
129,106.87 128,954.69

Schedule 5: Sundry Creditors & Payable

Audit Fee Payable
Office Rent Payable
Expenses Payable
Total

Current Year

Previous Year

2071-072 2070-071
4,250.00 16,725.00
152,700.00 131,100.00
- 452.00
156,950.00 148,277.00

Schedule 6: Administrative Expenses

Office Rent
Communication Exp.
Audit Fee

Total

Current Year

Previous Year

2071-072 2070-071
24,000.00 24,000.00
1,286.00 3,242.00
5,000.00 16,950.00
30,286.00 44,192.00
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Schedule - 7: Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accountsas at Ashadh 31, 2072

1. Introduction:

Sanima Insurance Company Ltd. has been registered as public limited company for operating general insurance

business. The company has applied for operating license and not yet obtained the certificate of operation and is still

in process for obtaining license from Beema Samiti.

2. Accounting Policies

A. Accounting Convention:

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance certain relevant Nepal

Accounting Standards and requirements of Nepal Company Act, 2063 and Income Tax Act, 2058.

B. Fixed Assets and Depreciation

a. Fixed assets are stated at cost and are inclusive of all expenses to the date of commissioning/ putting the assets

to use.

b. Depreciation is charged as per the provision in Income Tax Act 2058.

C. Income:

Since the company is in pre-operational phase, no income is generated during the year except interest income.

3. Notes to the Accounts

A. Being operational loss in the year, no corporate tax is required to provide.

B. Related Party Transactions:

The Company has done the transaction with its related party, which are as below.

S.No.

Related Party

Status

Transaction Type

Amount (Rs.)

1.

Sanima Bikas Bank Ltd.

Director Interested

Account Operation

Year End balance
NRs. 585,941.86

C. Previous year’s Figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary.
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

C. Subedi & Associates

- Registered Auditor
Chandra Kanta Subedi, RA
Regd.No:5193, Cop No:0137
ICAN Membership No:2926
Contact N&:+977-1-4770796
Pan No:106727678

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
Sanima Insurance Co.LTD

We have audited the accompanying Balance Sheet of the M/S Sanima Insurance Co. Ltd. Kathmandu,
Nepal as at Ashad 31, 2073 (July 15, 2016) and the Statement of Income and Cash Flows Statement
for the year ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing or relevant practices. Those
Standards or relevant practices require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. We express our opinion that:

a. We have obtained prompt replies to our queries and explanations asked for.
b, The financial statements are in agreement with the books of accounts maintained by the Company.,

c. The accounts and records of the Company have been accurately maintained in accordance with the
law.

d. To the best our information and according to the explanations given to us, neither the board of the
Directors nor any employee of the Company have acted contrary to legal provisions relating to
accounts nor committed any misappropriation causing loss or damage to the Company.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as of Ashad 31, 2073 (July 15, 2016) and of the results of its operation flow for the vear
then ended in accordance with Nepal Accounting Standards, relevant practices and comply with
Company Act, 2063.

(Y Setety
Chandra Kanta Subéty
C.Subedi & Associgtes
Registered Auditor fé,

Date: %73 2 O%. 2(9

Place: Kathmandu
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

(Amount in NRs.)
Schedules As At As At
31.03.2073 31.03.2072
Equity
Equity Holders' Fund
Share Capital 1 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00
Retained Earnings (489,447.51) (436,938.15)
Total Equity 510,552.49 563,061.85
Assets
Non Current Assets
Fixed Assets 2 51,790.00 51,790.00
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (46,605.16) (44,876.88)
Net Fixed Assets 5,184.84 6,913.12
Current Assets
Cash and Bank Balances 3 593,677.94 585,941.86
Loan Advance and deposits 4 131,989.71 129,106.87
Total Current Assets (A) 725,667.65 715,048.73
less: Current Liabilities & Provision
Sundry Creditors and Payable 5 215,200.00 156,950.00
TDS Payable 5,100.00 1,950.00
Total Current Liabilities (B) 220,300.00 158,900.00
Net Current Assets (A-B) 505,367.65 556,148.73
Total Assets 510,552.49 563,061.85

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 7

Arun Kumar Ojha
Director

Date: 2073-08-28
Place: Kathmandu

Motilal Dugar
Chairman

As Per Our Report of Even Date

Chandra Kanta Subedi, RA
C.Subedi & Associates
Registered Auditors
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.
Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Income Statement
For the year ended on Ashadh 31, 2073 (July 15, 2016)

Income
Income
Total Income

Administrative expenses
Depreciation Charge
Sub Total

Net Profit/( loss) before tax

Provision for Income Tax

Net Profit/( loss) After Tax

Profit/(Loss) brought forward from last year

Net Profit/ (Loss) transferred to Balance Sheet

(Amount in NRs.)

Schedules Current Year | Previous Year
2072-073 2071-072

19,218.92 21,017.81

19,218.92 21,017.81

7 (70,000.00) (30,286.00)

2 (1,728.28) (2,304.38)
(71,728.28) (32,590.38)

(52,509.36) (11,572.57)

(52,509.36) (11,572.57)

(436,938.15)

(425,365.58)

(489,447.51)

(436,938.15)

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 7

Arun Kumar Ojha
Director

Motilal Dugar
Chairman

Date: 2073-08-28
Place: Kathmandu

As Per Our Report of Even Date

Chandra Kanta Subedi, RA
C.Subedi & Associates
Registered Auditors
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended Ashadh 31, 2073 (July 15, 2016)

Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Cash flow from operating activities
Net Profit Before Taxation
Adjustment for:

Depreciation

Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital

Cash flow from changes in working capital
(Increase)/Decrease in current assets
Increase/(Decrease) in current liabilities
Cash Flow from operating activities

Cash flow on investing activities
Investment in shares
Purchase/Capitalisation of fixed assets
Cash flow on investing activities

Cash flow on financing activities
From issue of share capital
Cash flow on financing activities

Total cash generated in the year
Opening cash and bank balances
Cash and bank balance at the end of the year

(Amount in NRs.)

Current Year | Previous Year
2072-073 2071-072
(52,509.36) (11,572.57)
1,728.28 2,304.38
(50,781.08) (9,268.19)
(2,882.84) (152.68)
61,400.00 10,398.00
7,736.08 977.13
7,736.08 977.13
585,941.86 584,964.73
593,677.94 585,941.86

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 7

Arun Kumar Ojha Motilal Dugar
Director Chairman

Date: 2073-08-28
Place: Kathmandu

As Per Our Report of Even Date

Chandra Kanta Subedi, RA
C.Subedi & Associates
Registered Auditors

First Annual Report : 141



JArferdT SRR oA Ul fot.
Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Statement of Change in Equity
As at Ashadh 31, 2073 (July 15, 2016)

(Amount in NRs.)

Particulars Share capital Retained Total
Earning
Balance as at 31 Ashad 2072 1,000,000.00 | (436,938.15) 563,061.85
Adjustment During the year
Issue of Share Capital -
Net Loss (52,509.36)| (52,509.36)
Balance as at 31 Ashad 2073 1,000,000.00 | (489,447.51) 510,552.49
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 7 As Per Our Report of Even Date
Arun Kumar Ojha Motilal Dugar Chandra Kanta Subedi, RA
Director Chairman C.Subedi & Associates
Registered Auditors

Date: 2073-08-28
Place: Kathmandu
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Schedule Annexed to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

As At Ashadh 31, 2073

Schedule 1: Share Capital

Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

(Amount in NRs.)

Authorized Capital
20,00,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each

Issued Capital
12,50,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each

Paid up Capital
10,00,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each and Rs. 1 paid for each
Total

Current Year
2072-073

Previous Year
2071-072

200,000,000.00

125,000,000.00

1,000,000.00

200,000,000.00

125,000,000.00

1,000,000.00

1,000,000.00

1,000,000.00

Schedule 3: Cash and Bank

Sanima Bikas Bank (Current A/C)
Sanima Bikas Bank (Call Deposit A/C)
Total

Current Year

Previous Year

2072-073 2071-072
1,000.00 1,000.00
592,677.94 584,941.86
593,677.94 585,941.86

Schedule 4: Loans, Advance and Deposits

Miscellaneous Deposit
Advance Tax Payment
Business Advance to Staff
Advance To Other

Total Current Assets

Current Year

Previous Year

2072-073 2071-072
2,000.00 2,000.00
42,623.21 39,740.37
57,366.50 57,366.50
30,000.00 30,000.00
131,989.71 129,106.87

Schedule 5: Sundry Creditors & Payable

Audit Fee Payable
Office Rent Payable
Expenses Payable
Total

Current Year

Previous Year

2072-073 2071-072
8,500.00 4,250.00
206,700.00 152,700.00
215,200.00 156,950.00

Schedule 6: Administrative Expenses

Office Rent
Communication Exp.
Audit Fee

Sub-Total

Current Year

Previous Year

2072-073 2071-072
60,000.00 24,000.00

- 1,286.00
10,000.00 5,000.00
70,000.00 30,286.00
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Schedule - 7: Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accountsas at Ashadh 31, 2073

1. Introduction

Sanima Insurance Company Ltd. has been registered as public limited company for operating general insurance

business. The company has applied for operating license and not yet obtained the certificate of operation and is still

in process for obtaining license from Beema Samiti.

2. Accounting Policies

A. Accounting Convention

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance certain relevant Nepal

Accounting Standards and requirements of Nepal Company Act, 2063 and Income Tax Act, 2058.

B. Fixed Assets and Depreciation

a. Fixed assets are stated at cost and are inclusive of all expenses to the date of commissioning/ putting the assets

to use.

b. Depreciation is charged as per the provision in Income Tax Act 2058.

C. Income

Since the company is in pre-operational phase, no income is generated during the year except interest income.

3. Notes to the Accounts

A. Being operational loss in the year, no corporate tax is required to provide.

B. Related Party Transactions

The Company has done the transaction with its related party, which are as below.

S.No.

Related Party

Status

Transaction Type

Amount (Rs.)

1.

Sanima Bikas Bank Ltd.

Director Interested

Account Operation

Year End balance
NRs. 593,677.94

C. Previous year’s Figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary.
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C. Subedi & Associates

Registered Auditor
Chandra Kanta Subedi, RA
Regd.No:5193, Cop No:0137
ICAN Membership No:2926
Contact N&:+977-1-4770796
Pan No:106727678

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SANIMA INSURANCE CO LTD

We have audited the accompanying Balance Sheet of the M/S SANIMA INSURANCE CO LTD.,
Kathmandu, Nepal as at Ashadh 31, 2074 (July 15, 2017) and the Income Statement, Cash Flow
Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company's Management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
Financial Statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing and relevant practices. Those
Standards or relevant practices require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatements. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the significant accounting principles used and estimates
made by Management, as well as evaluating the overall Financial Statement presentation. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. We express our opinion that:

a. We have obtained prompt replies to our queries and explanations asked for.

b. The financial statements are in agreement with the books of accounts maintained by the
Company.

c¢. The accounts and records of the Company have been accurately maintained in accordance with
the law.

d. To the best our information and according to the explanations given to us, neither board of
director nor any employee of the Company have acted contrary to legal provisions relating to
accounts nor committed any misappropriation causing loss or damage to the Company.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as of Ashadh 31, 2074 (July 15, 2017) and of the results of its operation and cash flow for
the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Accounting Standards, relevant practices and comply
with Company Acts 2063.

Date; 203 4-06-30
Place: Kathmandu
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Balance-Sheet
As at Ashadh 31, 2074 (July 15, 2017)

(Amount in NRs.)

Equity

Equity Holders' Fund
Share Capital

Total Equity

Assets

Non Current Assets

Fixed Assets

Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Net Fixed Assets

Current Assets

Cash and Bank Balances
Loans,advances,deposits
Total Current Assets (A)

less: Current Liabilities & Provision

Sundry Creditors and Payable
TDS Payable

Total Current Liabilities (B)
Net Current Assets (A-B)
Debit Balance in P/L Account
Total Assets

Schedules As At As At
31.03.2074 31.03.2073

1 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00
1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00

2 25,000.00 51,790.00
(2,083.33) (46,605.16)

22,916.67 5,184.84

3 108,333.60 593,677.94
4 885,544.83 131,989.71
993,878.43 725,667.65

5 1,861,210.00 215,200.00
14,500.00 5,100.00

1,875,710.00 220,300.00
(881,831.57) 505,367.65
1,858,914.90 489,447.51
1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 7

Arun Kumar Ojha Motilal Dugar
Director Chairman

Date: 2074-06-30
Place: Kathmandu

As Per Our Report of Even Date

Chandra Kanta Subedi, RA
C.Subedi & Associates
Registered Auditor
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.
Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Income Statement

For the year ended Ashadh 31, 2074 (July 15, 2017)

(Amount in NRs.)
Schedules Current Year | Previous Year
2073-074 2072-073
Income
Income from Operation - -
Interest Income 23,700.78 19,218.92
Total Income
Less: Operating Expenses
Administrative expenses 6 1,385,900.00 70,000.00
Depreciation Charge 2 2,083.33 1,728.28
Dispose of Fixed Assets 5,184.84 -
Sub-tolal 1,393,168.17 71,728.28
Net Profit/( loss) before tax (1,369,467.39) (52,509.36)
Provision for Income Tax - -
Net Profit/( loss) After Tax (1,369,467.39) (52,509.36)

Profit/(Loss) broughtforward from last year
Net Profit/ (Loss) transferred to Balance Sheet

(489,447.51)

(436,938.15)

(1,858,914.90)

(489,447.51)

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 7

Arun Kumar Ojha
Director

Date: 2074-06-30
Place: Kathmandu

Motilal Dugar
Chairman

As Per Our Report of Even Date

Chandra Kanta Subedi, RA
C.Subedi & Associates
Registered Auditor
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended Ashadh 31, 2074 (July 15, 2017)

Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Cash flow from operating activities

Net Profit as per profit and loss account

Add: depreciation and write offs

Add: Dispose of Fixed Assets

Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital

Cash flow from changes in working capital
(Increase)/Decrease in current assets
Increase/(Decrease) in current liabilities
Cash Flow from operating activities

Cash flow on investing activities
Investment in shares

Purchase of fixed assets

Cash flow on investing activities

Cash flow on financing activities
From issue of share capital
Cash flow on financing activities

Total cash generated in the year
Opening cash and bank balances
Cash and bank balance at the end of the year

(Amount in NRs.)

Current Year | Previous Year
2073-074 2072-073
(1,369,467.39) (52,509.36)
2,083.33 1,728.28
5,184.84 -
(1,362,199.22) (50,781.08)
(753,555.12) (2,882.84)
1,655,410.00 61,400.00
901,854.88 58,517.16
(25,000.00) -
(25,000.00) -
(485,344.34) 7,736.08
593,677.94 585,941.86
108,333.60 593,677.94

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 7

Arun Kumar Ojha Motilal Dugar
Director Chairman

Date: 2074-06-30
Place: Kathmandu

As Per Our Report of Even Date

Chandra Kanta Subedi, RA
C.Subedi & Associates
Registered Auditors
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Statement of Change in Equity
For the year ended Ashadh 31, 2074 (July 15, 2017)

(Amount in NRs.)

Particulars Share capital Retained Total
Earning
Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2073 1,000,000.00 | (489,447.51) 510,552.49
Issue of Share Capital - -
Net Profit after Tax (1,369,467.39)((1,369,467.39)
Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2074 1,000,000.00 | (1,858,914.90)| (858,914.90)
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 7 As Per Our Report of Even Date
Arun Kumar Ojha Motilal Dugar Chandra Kanta Subedi, RA
Director Chairman C.Subedi & Associates
Registered Auditors

Date: 2074-06-30
Place: Kathmandu
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Schedule Annexed to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

As At Ashadh 31, 2074

Schedule 1: Share Capital

Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

(Amount in NRs.)

Authorized Capital
20,00,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each

Issued Capital
12,50,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each

Paid up Capital
10,00,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each and Rs. 1 paid for each
Total

Current Year

Previous Year

2073-074 2072-073
200,000,000.00 | 200,000,000.00
125,000,000.00 | 125,000,000.00

1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00
1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00

Schedule 3: Cash and Bank

Sanima Bank Current A/C
Sanima Bank Call Deposit A/C
Total

Current Year

Previous Year

2073-074 2072-073
1,000.00 1,000.00
107,333.60 592,677.94
108,333.60 593,677.94

Schedule 4: Loans, Advance and Deposits

Advance To Other

Advance Tax Payment (TDS)
Business Advance to Staff
Miscellaneous Deposit

Total

Current Year

Previous Year

2073-074 2072-073
780,000.00 30,000.00
46,178.33 42,623.21
57,366.50 57,366.50
2,000.00 2,000.00
885,544.83 131,989.71

Schedule 5: Sundry Creditors & Payable

Audit Fee Payable

Office Rent Payable
Payable to Other
Payable to Associates Co
Total

Current Year

Previous Year

2073-074 2072-073
8,500.00 8,500.00
260,700.00 206,700.00
892,010.00 -
700,000.00
1,861,210.00 215,200.00

Schedule 6: Administrative Expenses

Audit Fee

Consultancy Fee
Government Fee
Miscellaneous Expenses
Office rent
Transportation Expenses
Total

Current Year

Previous Year

2073-074 2072-073
10,000.00 10,000.00
904,000.00 -
390,000.00 -
21,500.00 -
60,000.00 60,000.00
400.00 -
1,385,900.00 70,000.00
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Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Sanima Insurance Company Ltd.

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Schedule - 7: Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accountsas at Ashadh 31, 2074

1. Introduction

Sanima Insurance Company Ltd. has been registered as public limited company for operating general insurance
business. The company has applied for operating license and not yet obtained the certificate of operation and is still
in process for obtaining license from Beema Samiti.

2. Accounting Policies

A. Accounting Convention

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance certain relevant Nepal
Accounting Standards and requirements of Nepal Company Act, 2063 and Income Tax Act, 2058.

B. Fixed Assets and Depreciation:

a. Fixed assets are stated at cost and are inclusive of all expenses to the date of commissioning/ putting the assets

to use.

b. Depreciation is charged as per the provision in Income Tax Act 2058.

C. Income

Since the company is in pre-operational phase, no income from insurance business is generated during the year

except interest income.
3. Notes to the Accounts

A. Income Tax

Being taxable loss in the year, no corporate tax is provided during the FY 2073-74.

B. Related Party Transaction

The company has done the transaction with its related party, which are as below.

S.No. | Related Party

Status

Transaction Type

Amount (Rs.)

1. Sanima Bikas Bank Ltd.

2. Sanima Life Insurance Co. Ltd.

Director Interested

Account Operation

Payable

Year End balance
NRs. 108,333.60

Nrs.700,000.00

C. Previous year’s Figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary.
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Management Team

Mr. Subodh Lal Shrestha Deputy General Manager

Mr. Prabeen Kumar Koirala Deputy General Manager (Claim/Underwriting/Re-insurance)

Ms. Upasana Poudel Assistant General Manager (Head-Marketing Department)
Mr. Raju Poudel Assistant General Manager (Marketing Department)

Mr. Anil Raj Giri Assistant General Manager (Marketing Department)

Ms. Hangma Subba Head-Underwriting Department

Ms. Sabhyata Tuladhar Head-Re-insurance Department

Mr. Ganesh Kadal Head-Finance Department

Ms. Deechya Thakuri Head-Human Resource Department

Mr. Anil Guragain Head- Legal/Company Secretary

Mr. Prashant Shrestha Head- Information Technology

Provincewise Branch Details

Province 1 3 Bhaktapur
1 Biratnagar Branch Sallaghari, Bhaktapur
Bargachhi-5, Biratnagar 01-6614022/01-6618422

021-463551/021-463552
4 Narayanghat Branch

2 Birtamode Branch Bharatpur-01, Pulchowk, Narayanghat
Bhadrapur Road, Birtamode, Jhapa Chitwan Nepal
023545010/023544514 056-533066/056-533042

Province 2 Province 4

1 Birgunj Branch 1 Kawasoti Branch
Linkroad, Ghantaghar, Birgunj Thanachowk, Kawasoti
051520054/051520076 78540935

2 Janakpur Branch Province 5
Dhanusa-14, Pidari Chowk 1 Butwal
41525799 Sukhanagar-8, Shukrapath, Butwal

071540492, 071540531

Province 3

1 Sundhara Branch 2 Nepalgunj
Sundhara, Kathmandu Puspalalchowk- 18, Nepalgunj
01-4251504/01-4251548 081-524243/081525389

2 Lalitpur Branch Province 7
Lagenkhel, Lalitpur 1 Dhangadi
01-5546728/01-5549328 Chauraha-2, Bhansar Road Dhangadi

091417749/091417750
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